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Department of Planning
Development Assesment Panels

Letter of transmittal

Hon John Day MLA
Minister for Planning
Culture and the Arts
Leader of the House

In accordance with section 61 of the Financial 
Management Act 2006, we submit for your information 
and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the 
Department of Planning and Development Assessment 
Panels for the year ended 30 June 2015.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance 
with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 
2006, and any other relevant written law.

Gail McGowan

Director General 
Department of Planning

21 September 2015

This annual 
report covers the 
operations of two 
inter-related State 
Government entities 
— the Department 
of Planning and 
Development 
Assessment Panels 
throughout Western 
Australia.

Each has separate 
enabling legislation and 
responsibilities, details 
of which are explained 
in this document.

This report also 
presents a series 
of audited financial 
statements and 
performance 
indicators for the year 
ended 30 June 2015.

About this report
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INTRODUCTION FROM THE DIRECTOR GENERAL

Among many notable 
achievements for the year, perhaps 
the most satisfying was the 
Department’s contribution to the 
very open, public and positive 
conversations about the planning 
direction required to sustain a 
viable future for metropolitan 
Perth.

The release in May of a suite of 
five strategic planning documents 

– the Perth and Peel@3.5million report and the draft Central, 
North-West, North East and South Metropolitan Peel Sub-regional 
Planning Frameworks – will help define the shape of Perth and 
Peel to 2050.

Prepared by the Department, on behalf of the Western Australian 
Planning Commission, the fundamental aim of this body of work 
was to demonstrate how we can accommodate a significant 
population growth to 3.5 million over the coming decades. The 
draft frameworks considered where homes and jobs should 
be located, how to make best use of proposed and existing 
infrastructure and how to protect our precious environmental 
assets.

Currently, the Perth and Peel regions stretch 150 kilometres from 
Two Rocks in the north to Bouvard in the south, with population 
densities as low as 300 people per square kilometre and few areas 
of more than 3,000 per sq. km. There is increasing consensus that 
by around 2050, 3.5 million people will call these areas home, 
placing pressure on our resources, social and physical infrastructure, 
services, the natural environment and our valued way of life.

The Department will continue working with the WAPC and 
our stakeholders in addressing public comment on the planning 
frameworks to map the future direction of Perth planning.

Similarly, the Department is committed to supporting the State 
Government and its partners in achieving the objectives of the 
earlier Directions 2031 framework to meet the vision of a world-
class class, liveable, green, compact and accessible city.

Part of this role is in the administration of the statutory planning 
processes that help determine subdivision and major development 
applications.

During the 2014/15 year the Department rolled out a new 
electronic lodgement system known as ePlan to improve 
the efficiency of application processing, as well as the level of 
transparency and accountability through better collation and tracking 
of relevant statistics.

The ePlan system, which also encourages an on-line payment 
process, will continue to be delivered in stages so that manual 
lodgement can ultimately be phased out in an orderly manner with 
minimal disruption to our clients and processes.

The next stage will include the electronic referral of subdivision 
applications to various government agencies required to advise on 
aspects of an application, in addition to allowing local governments 
to submit proposed structure plans online.

Also, as part of the Government’s Planning Reform Program, the 
Department is responsible for the administration of a secretariat 
for Development Assessment Panels (DAPs) which during the past 
financial year received over 400 proposals with a combined value of 
more than $7 billion. 



New DAP Regulations – in particular changes relating to 
monetary thresholds for significant applications, and a stop-the-
clock mechanism for processing – were introduced in May of this 
year. Terms of appointment for Specialist and Local Government 
members of DAPs were finalised during the same period and 
subsequently ratified by Government. 

In regional Western Australia, from the East Kimberley where we 
are reviewing the Halls Creek Local Planning Scheme to Albany’s 
redevelopment plans for the old Esplanade Hotel site at Middleton 
Beach, the Department adds to good planning outcomes, both as an 
active partner and as a facilitator. 

Internally one of my key objectives in the coming year will be to 
further strengthen the Department’s project management and 
reporting capabilities along with more robust budgeting to deliver 
Government priorities.

Externally we will stay focussed on delivering key planning reforms 
and projects while keeping the community engaged in mature 
dialogue about the best way forward to a sustainable future.

Gail McGowan

Director General 
Department of Planning



• As part of Planning Reform Phase Two, the Department is 
progressing new initiatives to support the information capture 
and management requirements of the planning process. The ePlan 
planning information system seeks to streamline and automate the 
processing of planning applications and improve the transparency 
of the application process by enabling applicants to track their 
proposals through the planning system. The system enables the 
lodgement of freehold subdivision and survey strata applications 
with the next phase focusing on:

 – the electronic referral of applications enabling inter-agency 
collaboration;

 – online lodgement of Structure Plan submissions;
 – online lodgement of development applications;
 – implementation of internal agency workflow processes; and
 – associated reporting systems to support the planning process 
and to meet planning reform objectives.

• The Department will facilitate the disbursement of $5.3 million 
under the Northern Planning program during 2015/16 to projects 
that address key planning constraints to the State’s ability to 
bring land to a development ready State in the short term in the 
Kimberley, Pilbara, Mid West and Gascoyne regions.

• The redevelopment of the former Esplanade Hotel site at 
Middleton Beach, Albany is a cross government priority. Major 
achievements to date include gazettal of Improvement Plan 40 
in October 2014, for land at, and in the vicinity of the former 
Esplanade Hotel site. Future planning of the site, ownership of 
which was transferred to LandCorp in December 2014, will 
be informed by the objectives set out in Improvement Plan 40. 
LandCorp, in consultation with the City of Albany, will complete 
an extensive public consultation program and advertising for 
developer expressions of interest. Development of the relevant 

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IMPACTING THE AGENCY

• The Strategic Assessment of the Perth and Peel regions (SAPPR) 
is underway to progress a plan for the future development, 
infrastructure and environmental conservation needs of the 
Perth and Peel area in accordance with the Commonwealth 
Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. 
The SAPPR is being led by the Department of the Premier and 
Cabinet with input and support from the Department.

• The Department progressed the Planning and Development 
(Development Assessment Panels) Amendment Regulations, 
which include modifications to the optional and mandatory 
monetary thresholds, the option to refer grouped and 
multiple dwellings to the Development Assessment Panels 
for consideration, and the implementation of ‘stop the clock’ 
mechanisms.

• The Department manages and monitors residential lot supply 
and applies appropriate regulatory requirements on behalf 
of the Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC), 
to increase the supply of residential lots and dwellings as a 
diversity of lot choices in appropriate locations helps support 
housing affordability. The Department has been reviewing 
its policies and practices to support residential diversity and 
choice and is reviewing the Residential Design Codes and 
Liveable Neighbourhoods policy to address emerging residential 
development trends and to deliver a contemporary urban 
environment, whilst responding to improved community 
amenity through lot supply. The Department is also investigating 
non-planning impediments to the creation of ancillary 
accommodation units and incentives that could be applied 
through the planning approvals processes to support affordable 
housing and identify the key regulatory costs in new residential 
lot production.



planning instruments, including preparation of the amendment to 
the local planning scheme and structure planning for the site, will 
follow.

• Implementing the growth areas identified in the Greater Bunbury 
Strategy including urban expansion east of Eaton and the 
proposed major strategic industrial estate at Waterloo, will house 
a population of 70,000 people in over 28,000 new dwellings. The 
Department continues to work collaboratively with State agencies 
and the local governments to:

 – promote sustainable development of land, taking into account 
relevant environmental, social and economic factors; and

 – provide for regional transportation, community services and 
infrastructure in a way that is efficient, equitable and timely.

• Developments of State and regional significance are also assessed 
and determined as part of the Greater Bunbury Region Scheme 
process.

• The Department, working jointly with the Department of State 
Development, expects to commence the purchase of land 
identified for the Oakajee Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor 
(ONIC) following the completion of the infrastructure corridor 
definition and implementation plan.

• The Department continues to develop its human resource and 
finance systems capability as a result of the decommissioning of 
the Office of Shared Services in 2012/13.



ABOUT US

• administrative support of Development Assessment Panels 
(DAPs);

• forecasting and modelling land use and population across Western 
Australia (State Demographer);

• management of reserved land held under the region schemes; and

• the review of region planning schemes.

The Department provides a stable governance platform that 
facilitates investment and supports the wider public interest. The 
Department supports reform of the planning system to ensure it 
is results-focussed and responsive to community expectations and 
government needs. The Department collaborates with State and 
Local Government agencies, as well as industry groups, to ensure 
successful and sustainable planning outcomes on behalf of the 
Minister and the WAPC.

The Department’s 439 employees are based at Gordon Stephenson 
House (140 William Street), Whiteman Park and regional offices 
located at Albany, Broome, Bunbury, Geraldton, Karratha and 
Mandurah.

About the Department
The Department of Planning is the Government’s principal 
advisor providing expertise in land use planning to the Minister 
for Planning and the Western Australian Planning Commission in 
the administration of planning legislation including the Planning and 
Development Act 2005.

The Department is also the principal agency responsible for 
supporting the Western Australian Planning Commission to 
undertake its role, responsibilities and functions as prescribed in the 
Planning and Development Act 2005.

The Department provides professional and technical expertise, 
services and resources to advise the Commission and the Minister, 
and implements decisions relating to the planning and development 
of communities throughout the State.

In fulfilling its role, the Department on behalf of the Minister and 
the WAPC, facilitates:

• strategic land use planning for the State;

• advice and assistance on land-use planning;

• development and review of State Planning Policies;

• implementation of statutory approvals for subdivision, strata title 
and development applications;

• coordinated planning of infrastructure;

• the delivery of key planning projects and initiatives;

• local government assistance in land use planning matters; 

• the assessment of local planning schemes, scheme amendments 
and structure plans;
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thresholds, as if it were the responsible authority under the relevant 
planning instrument, such as the local planning scheme or region 
planning scheme. 

DAP applications cannot be determined by local governments, or 
the Western Australian Planning Commission, but those authorities 
are responsible for providing a report and recommendations on the 
development application to the relevant DAP.

During 2014/15, as part of Planning makes it happen: phase two, the 
outcomes of a Review of DAPs were published and amendments to 
the DAPs Regulations came into effect on 1 May 2015. 

Particularly significant were changes to the dollar value of mandatory 
thresholds to above $20 million (previously $15 million) for the City 
of Perth and above $10 million (previously $7 million) for the rest 
of the State. The amended regulations also widened the monetary 
value of Optional DAP applications to between $2 and $20 million 
(previously $10 to $15 million) for the City of Perth and between $2 
and $10 million (previously $3 to $7 million) for the rest of the State.

The amended regulations also introduced two “stop-the-clock” 
mechanisms, which can ‘pause’ the statutory timeframe for processing 
applications, while further information is provided.

Due to come into effect in July 2015 was a Ministerial Order to 
amalgamate the original nine regional Joint Development Assessment 
Panels (JDAPs) into three regional DAPs covering the northern, 
central and southern areas of Western Australia.

For more information visit the DAPs website. 

Appendix 2 contains the remuneration data for DAP members.

About the Development Assessment 
Panels 
Development Assessment Panels (DAPs), operating since 1 July 
2011, were set up as part of the State Government’s reform 
commitment to streamline and improve the planning approvals 
process.

Since then a total of 15 DAPs have operated across the State, 
nine in regional centres and six in the metropolitan area. The 
panels, comprising a mix of three Specialist Members with planning 
and related disciplines expertise, and two Local Government 
representatives, improve the balance between technical expertise 
and local knowledge. 

The role of DAP Members is to determine development 
applications within a certain type and value threshold through 
consistent, accountable, and professional decision-making. The role 
of the Department of Planning is to maintain a DAP Secretariat to 
ensure professional administrative support to each DAP, keep the 
DAP website updated, including publishing agendas and minutes, 
and to maintain an accurate database of meetings and Member 
participation. 

DAPs have improved the planning system by providing more 
transparency, consistency and reliability in decision-making on 
complex development applications. All DAP meetings are open to 
the media and general public.

Under the Planning and Development (Development Assessment 
Panels) Regulations 2011 (DAPs Regulations), each DAP can 
determine development applications, that meet set type and value 

http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au


Legislation administered
Department of Planning
The Minister for Planning, principally assisted by the Department of 
Planning, is responsible for the administration of the following Acts:

• Fitzgerald Street Bus Bridge Act 1991;

• Forrest Place and City Station Development Act 1985;

• Hope Valley-Wattleup Redevelopment Act 2000;

• Metropolitan Region Improvement Tax Act 1959;

• Metropolitan Region Scheme (Fremantle) Act 1994;

• Perry Lakes Redevelopment Act 2005;

• Planning and Development Act 2005;

• Planning and Development  
(Consequential and Transitional Provisions) Act 2005;

• Port Kennedy Development Agreement Act 1992;

• Road Closure Acts (various); and 

• Swan Valley Planning Act 1995. 

Development Assessment Panels
Development Assessment Panels exercise the functions and powers 
given to it under:

• the Planning and Development Act 2005;

• the Planning and Development (Development Assessment Panels) 
Regulations 2011; and

• the Planning and Development (Development Assessment Panels) 
Amended Regulations 2014.

Enabling legislation
Department of Planning
The Department of Planning was established under section 35 of 
the Public Sector Management Act 1994.

Development Assessment Panels
Development Assessment Panels were established under part 3 
of the Approvals and Related Reforms (No.4) (Planning) Act 2010. 
Commonly known as the 2010 Amendment Act it contains a 
number of amendments to the Planning and Development Act 2005.

Also relevant are the Planning and Development (Development 
Assessment Panels) Regulations 2011 and Amendment Regulations 
2014.

Responsible Minister
The Department of Planning (incorporating Development 
Assessment Panels) is responsible to the Minister for Planning; 
Culture and the Arts, Leader of the House, the Hon John Day BSc 
BDSc MLA.



Our stakeholders
The Department of Planning contributes to and benefits from 
strong relationships with our stakeholders. In particular these 
include:

• State and Commonwealth departments and public authorities;

• Local Governments;

• Communities;

• Regional authorities;

• Development and planning industry;

• Infrastructure providers;

• Professional associations and representative groups; and

• University and research bodies.



REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Our operating environment
The key drivers for land use and infrastructure planning 
in Western Australia to deliver socially, economically and 
environmentally sustainable communities include:

• adapting to demographic and population movement and 
the changes in demand for and location of services in 
metropolitan and regional Western Australia; 

• implementing key state land use planning strategies and 
priorities as required by the Minister and the Western 
Australian Planning Commission;

• enhancing urban consolidation;

• contributing to housing choice and diversity;

• supporting productivity and employment including in rural 
and pastoral regions; and

• supporting natural resource management across the State.

Planning: by improving the planning system and 
delivering plans that more efficiently meet changing 
community demands, we will be supporting the 
development of effective local communities.

Building partnerships: by strengthening our 
leadership capability through managed partnerships 
and services, we will enhance our relationships to 
assist in achieving our vision and the outcomes of 
our customers and partner organisations.

Governance: by improving management systems 
and promoting high participation and leadership 
at all levels, we will ensure accountability, good 
governance and financial sustainability.

Regulation: by improving the efficiency of 
legislated frameworks and supporting regulations, 
we will be adding value to our communities.

Strategic goals
The strategic goals that will enable achievement of that joint vision 
have been identified as:



Performance management framework
The Western Australian Government has five goals that guide the 
development of policies, programs and services within its agencies. 
These are:

Goal 1: State building – major projects
Building strategic infrastructure that will create jobs and underpin 
Western Australia’s long-term economic development.

Goal 2: Financial and economic responsibility
Responsibility for managing the State’s finances through the efficient 
and effective delivery of services, encouraging economic activity 
and reducing regulatory burdens on the private sector.

Goal 3: Results based service delivery
Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for 
the benefit of all Western Australians.

Goal 4: Stronger focus on the regions
Greater focus on service delivery, infrastructure investment and 
economic development to improve the overall quality of life in 
remote and regional areas.

Goal 5: Social and economic responsibility
Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and 
environmentally responsible manner for the long-term benefit of 
the State. 

CONTRIBUTION TO 
GOVERNMENT GOALS 

The Department of Planning 
outcomes and services, and 

contribution to the State 
Government goals

SERVICE

DESIRED OUTCOME

GOVERNMENT GOAL

Results-based service delivery

Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery 
areas for the benefit of all Western Australians

GOAL 3

Integration of land systems 
that facilitates economic 

development

Accessibility to serviced 
land and infrastructure

1. INTEGRATED LAND & 
INFASTRUCTURE POLICY 

DEVELOPMENT

2. LAND ACCESSIBILITY 
PLANNING AND POLICY 

DEVELOPMENT



CASE STUDY: SUPPORTING THE WAPC

PERTH AND PEEL @ 3.5 MILLION,  
SUB-REGIONAL PLANNING FRAMEWORKS

The Department of Planning supports the WAPC, utilising the 
skills and knowledge of specialist officers from a broad range 
of planning and corporate service disciplines.

The five landmark, strategic planning documents – the Perth 
and Peel@3.5million report and the draft Central, North-West, 
North East and South Metropolitan Peel Sub-regional Planning 
Frameworks – were all prepared by the Department on behalf of 
the WAPC.

The Department will also be analysing and reporting on feedback 
from the public comment period that was due to close at end-
July. 

An extra 1.5 million people are expected to be living here within 
coming decades, pushing the population of Perth and Peel to  
3.5 million. 

The suite of five strategic planning documents will aid the 
Government in creating a more compact, liveable and 
consolidated metropolitan area, catering for an additional 800,000 
homes.

In publicly releasing the documents Minister Day commented that 
the current outward sprawl of the city was unsustainable and 
accommodating a substantial population increase would require a 
shift in thinking.

The draft frameworks recommend that almost half the 
new homes needed should be created through appropriate 
densification and infill. This also offers more choice in housing 
styles and locations, while maintaining the lifestyle and 
affordability option of a traditional suburban home with backyard.

Once finalised, the frameworks will be further developed by 
Departmental staff to create sub-regional structure plans for 
WAPC endorsement. 

Structure plans are planning and land-use instruments, used by 
State agencies and local governments to guide residential and 
industrial development, and supporting infrastructure.



Oakajee Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor (ONIC) 
Project
In 2014/15 the Department, working with the Department of State 
Development, progressed plans for acquiring land for the Oakajee-
Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor, which will link the Oakajee site 
with the Narngulu Industrial Estate to the south. 

This work focussed on land planning, further engineering and 
alignment refinement and identifying a preferred approach for 
undertaking the land acquisition.

ePlan – online planning applications
In February this year the Department launched the first stage of 
ePlan – an online system to make it easier and faster to lodge and 
track planning applications – via the Department’s website. This was 
a significant milestone in delivering the reforms of Planning makes 
it happen: phase two, to further streamline approval processes and 
ensure continuity of land supply. 

Following a short registration process, through the ePlan portal, 
any company or individual is able to lodge and pay for Form 1A 
subdivision applications, or subdivision amalgamations, online. Typically 
the Department receives - on behalf of the WAPC – more than 
3,000 such applications to create nearly 40,000 residential lots. 

The fully electronic processing and approval system further enhances 
the Department’s ability to efficiently and accurately process, manage 
and report on planning applications.

SERVICE 1: INTEGRATED LAND & INFRASTRUCTURE POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT

Forrestfield Airport Link (FAL) Project
The Department is a member of the Forrestfield-Airport Link 
Project Steering Committee and is working with other government 
agencies, the City of Belmont and Shire of Kalamunda to improve 
connectivity between the eastern suburbs and Perth CBD.

The project will connect Forrestfield to the city with a new train line, 
opening up the eastern suburbs to the rail network for the first time 
and give Perth Airport users a more convenient option than by car. 

Connecting with the existing Midland line near Bayswater Station, 
the majority of the rail link will be tunnelled underground to ensure 
minimal impact on the existing land and road network.

Planning has started for the urban centre around the new 
Forrestfield station (in the foothills suburb of High Wycombe) to 
offer a 20-minute rail journey into the city.

Investigations continue for the best usage of potentially 250 ha 
around the Forrestfield terminus which could be utilised for 
development purposes such as high-density residential and 
commercial projects as well as a new shopping centre. 

The Shire of Kalamunda has released a draft district structure plan 
setting out plans for development near the station.

The nearby light industrial area already benefits from airport access 
and easy links to the Roe and Tonkin Highways.



New website for 
the Department 
and WAPC
In May of this year 
the Department 
and the WAPC 
launched a new 
website.

The new site has a fresh, modern corporate style and additional 
functionality, users can still find all of our information in the 
expected places. The website menus, now a dropdown selection, are 
unchanged.

While focusing on compliance, the user experience and accessibility 
standards, the new website is also mobile and tablet responsive; that 
is, the website layout changes to adapt to the device upon which it 
has been accessed, making it easier to navigate on mobile phones 
and tablets. 

Other new web features and enhancements include:

• a promotional banner for the Department’s latest initiatives and 
news; 

• linked promotional boxes to assist with navigation to high traffic 
areas of the website;

• improved portals for electronic lodgement and access to agendas 
and minutes;

•  text resizing - the website text can be increased and decreased; 

• a new website subscription form in the footer area; and 

• a link to the Department’s Twitter page. 

The current features – all including an online payment facility – are:

• online lodgement of freehold or survey strata subdivision and 
amalgamations applications; 

• online lodgement of applications for endorsement of deposited 
plans, survey-strata plans or strata plans applications; 

• online lodgement of amended plans for freehold or survey strata 
subdivision and amalgamations applications; 

• online lodgement of reconsiderations of WAPC decisions 
on freehold or survey strata subdivision and amalgamations 
applications; and 

• online (no charge) application progress report.

In Parliament Minister Day commended the work of officers from 
the Department of Planning, 

The next ePlan feature to be made available will allow the 
electronic lodgement of Structure Plans by local government 
authorities.

… in particular the information and 
communications technology staff, for their very 
effective work in developing this online system.

(Hansard, 25 March 2015) 

http://www.planning.wa.gov.au
http://www.planning.wa.gov.au


CASE STUDY: SUPPORTING WHOLE OF 
GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

MIDDLETON BEACH ACTIVITY CENTRE 

As the Chair of the Middleton Beach Working Group 
the Department has a key role in overseeing the 
redevelopment of the former Esplanade Hotel site  
in Albany.

The iconic beachfront site has had five different Esplanade 
Hotels between 1892 and 2007, but has been vacant and 
derelict since the last demolition in 2007, followed by the 
indefinite shelving of redevelopment plans following the  
2008 Global Financial Crisis. 

After the WAPC’s Improvement Plan process was completed 
in November 2014 the Government intervened to acquire 
the 1.3 hectare site for $7 million, almost half of which was 
funded from the Royalties for Regions program. At the time 
Premier Barnett said the former Esplanade Hotel occupied 
a special place in the hearts of the people of Albany and the 
empty lot had been a blight on one of the most beautiful 
beachside locations in the State.

 In June this year –after intensive consultation with the 
community and working closely with the City of Albany, 
Great Southern Development Commission and various 
government departments – Landcorp called for registrations 
of interest from private developers. They are being invited  
to participate in the creation of a lively community hub  
with potential for new restaurants, cafes, shops, hotel  
and short-stay accommodation, as well as permanent  
residential apartments.

The Department will be strongly involved in the  
next steps of the project as the Working Group  
guides the preparation of planning instruments,  
such as Local Planning Scheme amendments  
and structure planning for the site, expected  
to be completed in mid-2016. This will  
include agency and community consultation  
before the City of Albany seeks approvals  
from the WAPC and Minister for Planning.

1892 first Esplanade Hotel opens (inset bottom right)
1908 hotel burns to ground
1911 second hotel opens as road link to town built
1949 third and bigger hotel opens after partial demolition (pictured)
1971 old hotel demolished to make way for fourth
1991 five-star colonial-style hotel built including shops and vintage car museum
2007 hotel demolished by Singaporean investor, WCP Group
2008 Global Financial Crisis causes shelving of redevelopment plans
2014 Government intervenes to acquire derelict site
2015 Landcorp invites private sector to get involved in mixed- use development



SERVICE 2: LAND ACCESSIBILITY PLANNING AND POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT

New Local Planning Scheme Regulations 
New Local Planning Schemes Regulations, as part of the Model 
Scheme Text and Regulations review, was a significant project 
undertaken by the Department in response to the Government’s 
planning reform initiatives. 

Draft regulations that amend and replace Town Planning 
Regulation 1967 and associated Model Scheme text were 
released in November 2014 for stakeholder feedback, which was 
overwhelmingly supportive of the proposals.

The new regulations are expected to come into effect from 
October this year, introducing many more uniform procedures, such 
as standard forms and application processes.

The changes remove the need for a Development Application to 
be submitted to a local government to construct a compliant single 
house. Exemptions also extend to basic renovations and additions, 
including a “granny flat”, although a Council building permit will still 
be required. 

For local governments the introduction of deemed provisions to 
the Model Scheme Text, for automatic inclusion in Local Planning 
Schemes, will improve LPS review and amendment processes.

The changes also streamline structure planning procedures for 
local Councils and development proponents; and, in line with other 
planning reforms, make the process consistent and simpler across all 
local governments.

Swan Valley Inquiry implementation
The Department continues to work with Government, in 
consultation with the Swan Valley Planning Committee, the WAPC 
and key stakeholders, including the City of Swan, to ensure the area 
is protected from competing and incompatible land uses.

Revising the legislative and governance framework for the Swan 
Valley requires the repeal of the existing Swan Valley Planning Act 
1995 and the introduction of a new Act, designed to deliver a more 
robust and precise regime that preserves the character of the Swan 
Valley. 

The Department has developed comprehensive instructions 
to Parliamentary Counsel, outlining the nature of the reforms 
sought. Under this new framework an instrument described as a 
“Development Plan” may be created to govern development and 
land use for the area. 

The local government (or Development Assessment Panels for 
higher value applications) will determine planning applications 
according to relevant scheme, policy and design guidelines provisions, 
all of which must align with the “Plan”. 

Final Government approval is being sought for the preparation 
of the new Act, with a view to the proposed legislation being 
introduced next year.

The Swan Valley has considerable historical and cultural value as a 
viticultural, agricultural and tourism region. Investment over several 
decades has seen it emerge as a region of state significance that 
attracts more than 600,000 visitors a year and contributes over 
$200 million annually to the Western Australian economy.



Strategic Assessment Perth & Peel Regions (SAPPR) 
 In 2014/15 the Department continued its significant involvement 
with the Department of Premier and Cabinet in the SAPPR project 
under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 
1999 (EPBC Act).

That Act aims to protect and manage nationally and internationally 
significant flora, fauna, ecological communities, wetlands and 
heritage places—defined in the EPBC Act as matters of national 
environmental significance (MNES). 

In Western Australia, if a proposed development or activity is likely 
to have a significant impact on MNES, approval is required from the 
Commonwealth Environment Minister before that activity can go 
ahead. 

The DPC, which is working in partnership with the Commonwealth 
Department of the Environment (DoE) and a raft of State 
government agencies, is seeking the following priority outcomes 
from SAPPR:

• a significant reduction in the need for project-by-project 
assessment under the EPBC Act in the Perth and Peel region; 

• an effective long-term and strategic response to key 
environmental issues in the Perth and Peel region, for example, 
Carnaby’s Cockatoo and water quality in the Peel-Harvey estuary; 

• a greater certainty for industry as to which areas can be 
developed and what the obligations will be in terms of mitigation, 
including environmental offsets; and 

• greater certainty in long-term land supply to meet the needs of a 
city of 3.5 million.

Regional Town Planning Projects
A good example of the Department’s diverse influence, and reach 
to regional Western Australia, is the Northern Planning Program, 
started five years ago to help local governments bring land to a 
development-ready state.

Funded by Royalties for Regions, the Program identified some 
100 high priority strategic and statutory planning activities in the 
Kimberley, Pilbara, Mid-West and Gascoyne regions.

The $27 million initiative has been overseen by the Department 
under a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
Department of Regional Development in association with an Inter-
Agency Working Group.

Deliverables to date include updated and contemporary Local 
Planning Strategies, Local Planning Schemes, Structure Plans, Land-
use Studies, Revitalisation Plans, Designing Guidelines, Traffic Studies, 
Infrastructure Analysis and Coastal Protection Plans.

The Northern Planning Program helped support regional shires to 
engage with their communities in planning for orderly land supply 
and diversification of their local economies. 



The Strategic Assessment has been undertaken in collaboration 
with the preparation of the draft Perth and Peel@3.5million suite 
of documents, including the draft Central, North-West, North East 
and South Metropolitan Peel Sub-regional Planning Frameworks – 
prepared by the Department on behalf of the WAPC.

This collaborative approach has provided the opportunity to 
avoid, mitigate and offset the environmental impact of future 
development at a strategic scale and consequently achieve 
improved long term environmental outcomes.

Supporting the WAPC
A great deal of the Department’s day-to-day work is in supporting 
the Western Australian Planning Commission to fulfil its role, 
responsibilities and functions.

As such the Department provides professional and technical 
expertise, services and resources to advise the WAPC, and to 
implement decisions.

Accordingly this report should be read in conjunction with the 
WAPC Annual Report 2014/15. 

http://www.planning.wa.gov.au/dop_pub_pdf/WAPC_annual_report_2015.pdf


Development Assessment  
Panel Achievements
The 15 Development Assessment 
Panels (DAPs) operating in 
metropolitan and regional 
Western Australia contribute to 
Government goal 3 with a focus 
on achieving results in key service 
delivery areas for the benefit of all 
Western Australians. DAPs panels 
are responsible to the Minister 
for Planning, with support from 
the Department of Planning. An 
overview of the DAPs application 
process can be found online at daps.
planning.wa.gov.au. 

During 2014/115 the Development 
Assessment Panels Secretariat 
received 429 applications, compared 
with 321 for the previous year. These 
were made up of 268 development 
applications (Form 1), 133 
applications for amendment (Form 
2) and 28 State Administrative 
Tribunal (SAT) appeals for review.

� The statutory timeframe for processing DAP applications 
is either 60 days, or 90 days where an application requires 
advertising by the local government. The timeframe may be 
extended if an application requires additional information 
for the completion of the Responsible Authority Report. 
From 1 May 2015, new regulations introduced a “stop-the-
clock” mechanism to be used at the request of the local 
government, which will pause the statutory timeframe while 
further information is being provided.

� From 1 May 2015, new regulations increased the estimated 
development value threshold for mandatory DAP 
applications to above $20 million for the City of Perth and 
above $10 million for the rest of the State. The previous 
thresholds were $15 million and $7 million respectively.

� From 1 May 2015, new regulations widened the estimated 
development value of optional DAP applications to $2-$20 
million for the City of Perth and $2-$10 million for the rest 
of the State. The previous thresholds were $10-15 million 
and $3-7 million respectively.

� Some fees for applications lodged during the 2014/15 
financial year may not have been received in the period as 
local governments have 30 days to remit payment to the 
Department of Planning.

� Refunds for withdrawals of applications have not been 
included in this calculation.

AVERAGE TIME TAKEN FOR 
DAP APPLICATION� 60 DAY 90 DAY
City of Perth LDAP 149 117
Gascoyne JDAP - -
Goldfields Esperance JDAP - 98
Great Southern JDAP 41 -
Kimberley JDAP - -
Metro Central JDAP 64 107
Metro East JDAP 63 100
Metro North-West JDAP 73 123
Metro South-West JDAP 67 88
Metro West JDAP 80 97
Mid-West JDAP - -
Peel JDAP 83 103
Pilbara JDAP 64 76
South West JDAP 51 -
Wheatbelt JDAP 54 -

TOTAL 72 DAYS 101 DAYS

NATURE OF FORM 1 APPLICATIONS 
RECEIVED 2014/15

DAP Mandatory � Optional� 
City of Perth LDAP 20 1
Gascoyne JDAP - -
Goldfields-Esperance JDAP 1 -
Great Southern JDAP 3 -
Kimberley JDAP - -
Metro Central JDAP 37 36
Metro East JDAP 18 15
Metro North-West JDAP 21 14
Metro South-West JDAP 24 10
Metro West JDAP 23 18
Mid-West JDAP - -
Peel JDAP 8 4
Pilbara JDAP 10 -
South-West JDAP 2 1
Wheatbelt JDAP 2 -

TOTAL 169 99

VALUE OF DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

DAP
Total 

Development 
value ($)

Form 1 
Application 

Fees ($)

Form 2 
Application Fees 

($)�
City of Perth LDAP $1,457,311,000 $129,743 $2,100
Gascoyne JDAP $0 $0 $150
Goldfields Esperance JDAP $30,800,000 $6,557 $150
Great Southern JDAP $53,789,713 $18,495 $0
Kimberley JDAP $0 $0 $0
Metro Central JDAP $1,500,249,559 $355,965 $4,800
Metro East JDAP $411,911,300 $159,652 $1,050
Metro North-West JDAP $1,525,149,700 $186,116 $3,300
Metro South-West JDAP $684,301,240 $184,310 $3,300
Metro West JDAP $700,879,000 $205,274 $2,400
Mid-West JDAP $0 $0 $0
Peel JDAP $290,500,000 $60,223 $600
Pilbara JDAP $716,735,158 $55,037 $1,350
South-West JDAP $36,200,676 $15,945 $300
Wheatbelt JDAP $130,000,000 $12,442 $300

Grand Total $7,537,827,346 $1,389,759 $19,800

TOTAL FEES RECEIVED FOR 2014-15� $1,409,559

The tables following 
indicate the number, type 
and value of applications 

determined by each 
DAP during 2014/15, 
as well as processing 

timeframes.

http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au
http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au


APPLICATIONS RECEIVED IN 2014/15  
AND DECISIONS MADE�

FORM 
1

FORM 
2 SAT

City of Perth LDAP
app und from 13/14 2 2 -
received 21 14 -
decision - approved 18 10 -
decision - refused - 1 -
withdrawn - 1 -
still current (app und fr 14/15 4 4 -

Gascoyne JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 - - -
received - 1 -
decision - approved - 1 -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn - - -
still current - - -

Goldfields-Esperance JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 - - -
received 1 1 -
decision - approved 1 - -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn - - -
still current - 1 -

Great Southern JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 - 1 -
received 3 - 1
decision - approved 2 1 1
decision - refused - - 1
withdrawn - - -
still current 1 - -

Kimberley JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 - - -
received - - -
decision - approved - - -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn - - -
still current - - -

APPLICATIONS RECEIVED IN 2014/15  
AND DECISIONS MADE�

FORM 
1

FORM 
2 SAT

Metro Central JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 18 1 0
received 73 32 9
decision - approved 56 23 3
decision - refused 8 - 3
withdrawn 6 3 -
still current 19 7 7

Metro East JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 5 - 0
received 33 7 2
decision - approved 18 6 1
decision - refused 3 - 1
withdrawn 1 - 2
still current 16 0 -

Metro North-West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 19 5 3
received 35 22 4
decision - approved 25 19 3
decision - refused 6 - 3
withdrawn 1 1 3
still current 17 7 1

Metro South-West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 8 5 1
received 34 23 3
decision - approved 28 19 1
decision - refused 3 - 1
withdrawn - - -
still current 7 7 3

Metro West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 12 2 4
received 41 16 9
decision - approved 27 12 6
decision - refused 10 1 6
withdrawn 1 1 4
still current 11 3 6

� Due to a mid-year 
transition to an 
improved database 
for recording 
DAP applications, 
discrepancies may 
exist between 
2013/14 and 2014/15 
reported figures. It 
is anticipated that 
this will have a minor 
carry-over impact on 
2015/16 figures, when 
reported

APPLICATIONS RECEIVED IN 2014/15  
AND DECISIONS MADE�

FORM 
1

FORM 
2 SAT

Mid West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 - - -
received - - -
decision - approved - - -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn - - -
still current - - -

Peel JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 3 - -
received 12 4 -
decision - approved 14 2 -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn - - 1
still current 1 2 -

Pilbara JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 4 4 -
received 10 9 -
decision - approved 10 10 -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn - - -
still current 2 2 -

South West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 - - -
received 3 2 -
decision - approved 2 1 -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn - - -
still current 1 1 -

Wheatbelt JDAP
app'l undetermined from 13/14 - - 1
received 2 2 -
decision - approved 1 2 -
decision - refused - - -
withdrawn 1 - -
still current - - -



MANAGING THE DEPARTMENT

Corporate Governance 
The Department supports best practice in corporate governance 
which is demonstrated through consideration and approval of 
all Department policies, setting strategic direction and resource 
allocation, as well as monitoring performance, progress against targets 
and resource use. The following committees assist the Department in 
achieving good governance:

• Executive Management Committee

• Information Services Program Management Board

• Audit and Risk Management Committee

• Safety, Health and Wellness Committee.

In recognition of the importance of public sector agencies upholding 
high standards of ethics and conduct, whilst providing an environment 
of transparency and accountability, the Department maintains an 
Accountability Framework. The Accountability Framework details the 
overarching policies, reporting processes, legislation and Government 
directives that govern the way we perform our duties.

The Department also maintains a Governance Guide for Managers 
which aims to build managers’ knowledge and understanding of 
governance and their responsibilities as public sector employees. The 
information contained in the Governance Guide can be applied to all 
levels of management and also includes a section to assist first time 
managers and supervisors. 

During 2014-15, work continued to streamline and review corporate 
policies and procedures in line with the Department’s Corporate 
Policy Development Framework which provides for the development, 
approval, implementation, review and evaluation of corporate policies 

Our values
Commitment 
We do our best to build on our centres of excellence

Cooperation 
We work collaboratively with our customers and stakeholders to 
achieve our goals and deliver a quality service

Honesty and integrity 
We act ethically and with integrity

Innovation 
We encourage creativity and excellence

Leadership 
We are accountable and responsible while inspiring others to lead

Respect 
We treat each other with fairness, dignity and understanding 



The recommendations emanating from internal audit reviews 
are managed and monitored through the Department’s Audit 
Recommendation Management System. Progress reporting 
on the status of the Department’s implementation of audit 
recommendations occurs on a monthly basis to the Executive 
Management Committee. In addition, the Department has 
an established Audit and Risk Management Committee. The 
Committee’s primary objective is to improve the credibility and 
objectivity of the Department’s accountability processes and 
governance practices. The Committee is chaired by the Director 
General, and includes external audit representation.

Also during 2015, the Department’s internal audit function was 
externally quality assessed, with the results highlighting that the 
function is complying with the IIA’s International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Standards).

External Audit
During the year, the Department was included in a sample 
of agencies that were examined by the OAG as part of their 
benchmarking audit on Managing the Accuracy of Leave Records, 
and received a “Fair – Good” rating against the criteria applied by 
the OAG. In addition, the Department has also been included as 
part of an across Government Data Analytics audit by the OAG.

The recommendations emanating from external audit reviews 
are managed and monitored through the Department’s Audit 
Recommendation Management System. During 2014/15, progress 
reporting on the status of the Department’s implementation of 
external audit recommendations continued to be delivered to the 
Executive Management Committee on a monthly basis.

and procedures. Key policies and procedures reviewed during 
the year related to the areas of project management, conflicts of 
interest, travel and ministerial processes.

Risk Management
In line with the Department’s Risk Management and Business 
Continuity Policy, the Department maintained a Strategic Risk 
Register during 2014-15. The Strategic Risk Register identifies 
a number of risks which have been assessed against the 
Department’s risk matrix. The register also details treatment 
strategies to minimise the rating of each risk. Monitoring of risks 
and treatment strategies occurs quarterly. 

Internal Audit 
The Department of Planning’s internal audit function provides an 
independent and objective assurance and consulting service to add 
value to the Department by improving organisational operations 
and business practices.

Internal Audit conducts comprehensive audits in accordance with 
the Department’s endorsed Internal Audit Charter and Audit 
Program. Some of the key reviews undertaken in 2014/15 included:

• Payroll Controls

• Gift Registry, Hospitality and Lobbyist

• Non-Payroll EFT Payments to Staff

• Ministerials

• WAPC’s Delegations to DoP staff.



REGIONAL EMPLOYEES

Region No. employees

Great Southern 9

Kimberley 1

Mid-West 3

South-West 21

Code of Conduct
The Department’s Code of Conduct is included with each 
employee’s employment contract. The Code of Conduct is 
required to be read and signed by all new employees as part of 
the commencement process to ensure the highest standard of 
ethics, integrity, impartiality and professional conduct are adhered to. 
Ongoing support for employees in understanding the implications 
of this document is provided by way of the mandatory Accountable 
and Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) training conducted by Strategic 
Workforce Services (SWS), and also the employee’s line manager. 
A copy of the Code of Conduct is available on the Department’s 
intranet for all employees.

Promoting our values
During 2014/15, the Department promoted its corporate values 
within the workplace through a number of initiatives, such as 
continued promotion of the Department’s code of conduct, AEDM 
training, corporate inductions, performance and development 
discussions and awareness-raising discussions held at team and 
divisional managers’ meetings.

Leading and developing our people
Employee profile 
The Department of Planning employs a diverse workforce of 
talented people who provide professional and technical expertise 
to a broad range of planning services to the Western Australian 
Planning Commission and the Minister for Planning.

The Department aims to create a workplace where our employees 
feel valued and supported, business outcomes are achieved, 
diversity is encouraged, and health and safety is promoted across all 
Department sites. Commitment to the ongoing development of the 
workforce through quality learning opportunities is paramount to 
ensure that the services offered by the Department can adapt and 
respond to meet the diverse needs of our private, local government 
and industry stakeholders.

During 2014/15 the Department introduced strategically and 
innovative recruitment practices so as to attract and retain good 
quality applicants and in turn become an employer of choice.

EMPLOYEE NUMBERS 

Employee Type 2013/14 2014/15

Permanent employees 430 439

Full-time equivalent (average) 446 431

Part-time employees 61 58

Fixed-term contracts 44 23



Accountable and Ethical Decision Making (AEDM)
In 2014/15, the Department continued to deliver face to face 
training and educating its employees in accountable and ethical 
decision-making that relates directly to planning decisions and 
processes as well as guiding employees in their role as public 
servants.

AEDM training helps to ensure our employees act with integrity 
when making decisions that relate to undertaking their duties as 
public sector employees. Conducting business with integrity and 
accountability is essential to maintain the trust and confidence of 
the public. The Department continues to maintain 85 per cent of 
its workforce having completed AEDM training, as per the Public 
Sector Commissioner’s requirements. 

Learning and development
The Department is committed to building workforce capability and 
capacity by way of sound learning and development programs.

In 2014/15 leadership capability was identified as a strategic priority 
for the Department. The Leadership Development Framework was 
developed and approved by the agency’s Corporate Executive and 
delivery commenced in June 2015. In addition, 13 employees were 
sponsored to attend external leadership development courses 
both in WA and interstate.

The Department maintains a strong commitment to providing its 
employees with the appropriate development opportunities to 
enhance their skills and knowledge that will enable them to build 
their careers and contribute to the Department’s strategic goals 
and the sector as a whole. 

In June this year young planning manager, Jamie Brady, who 
works in the Infrastructure, Projects, Policy and Research 
Division of the Department, was awarded the AV Jennings 
Churchill Fellowship, valued at around $25,000. 

He will investigate ways to better manage the 
interface between industrial development and 
expanding residential communities, undertaking his 
research over six busy weeks in September and 
October this year, visiting the United Kingdom, 
Netherlands, Canada and the USA. Jamie was one of 
13 West Australians among 109 Churchill Fellowship 
winners nationwide.

The Winston Churchill Memorial Trust was 
established 50 years ago to honour the former British 
Prime Minister’s legacy and celebrate and reward 
Australians who strive for excellence. The Trust’s 
fellowships provide recipients the opportunity to 
travel overseas to conduct research in their chosen 
field alongside the world’s foremost leaders in 
disciplines ranging from the arts, health and medicine 
through to community and public service. 

The range of study areas is limitless; however, 
applicants must demonstrate a benefit to Australia 
and a willingness to share their research findings with 
the Australian community.

Churchill 
Fellowship 
winner



Strategic Workforce Services provide overall support and guidance 
for managers and directors on reaching resolution for grievances and 
other matters within the Department.

The Department is committed to providing education and 
awareness around the importance of good mental, physical and 
financial health and providing employees with information, resources 
and tools to support their wellbeing. Further information is available 
under the Employee Wellness section of this report below.

Occupational safety and health
During 2014/15, the Department built on its commitment to 
ensure its Duty of Care provision to employees through the use of 
proactive measures to address potential health and safety concerns 
of its employees. Training was provided where relevant to increase 
the number of Safety Health Representatives, First Aiders and 
Wardens across the Department. Included in this work the areas of 
focus that were rolled out to new starters during induction as well 
as circulated to all employees via the intranet were as follows:

• Employee wellness and health promotion program

• Workers’ compensation and injury management

• Occupational safety and health training for managers

• Hazard awareness and management.

Employee wellness and health promotion program
The Department’s Wellness Program has promoted the benefits and 
increased awareness of health by offering employees opportunities 
for learning and interactive participation. It has also included 
programs that revolve around Mental Health management to 

In 2014/15, a total of 390 employees attended various professional 
learning and development activities. Planning specific training 
programs and events were attended by employees throughout the 
year and identified through professional memberships and related 
corporate providers.

Additionally the Department continues to promote other learning 
and development initiatives offered by external agencies, including 
the Public Sector Commission and the CCC, which are relevant to 
the business of the Department and the individuals’ career within 
the public sector. 

Corporate induction
In 2014/15 the Department reviewed and delivered a 
contemporary Corporate Induction full day training programs to 
ensure all new employees are comprehensively inducted into the 
agency. The program has a focus on the Department’s corporate 
values and AEDM, and is designed to provide each new employee 
with a seamless transition into the workplace.

Employee assistance and support
The Department offers a range of services to support the health 
and wellbeing of our employees. The Department’s Employee 
Assistance Program (EAP) provides free confidential counselling to 
our employees and their families on both work-related and personal 
issues. The Department’s managers can access the EAP’s “Manager 
Hotline”, which provides consultants who can offer practical advice 
to managers who are dealing with challenging employees issues in 
the workplace.



Occupational safety and health training for managers 
During 2014/15, the Department provided targeted training to 
its managers in Occupational Health and Safety through a risk 
management approach. The Department provides reports to the 
Corporate Executive on training participation rates and will continue 
to approach managers with the aim of ensuring their professional 
development and participation in safe work behaviours and risk 
management is maintained.

Hazard awareness and management
Hazard reporting and management was highlighted during the year 
with a focus on developing employee awareness of identification of 
hazards and the Department’s hazard reporting and management 
processes. This message has been reiterated to employees via 
induction programs and also via the Safety Health and Wellness 
(SHAW) Committee meetings. 

During 2014/15, the Department continued to maintain its 
awareness of OSH requirements for its regional personnel and will 
continue to work with employees in these locations to ensure their 
good health and safety. The Department’s OSH Management System 
was reviewed to simplify employees reporting of incidents and 
hazards and to streamline investigations of incidents. 

improve positivity and productivity, promoting the Department’s 
Employee Assistance Provider.

The Department has continued its proactive partnerships with 
the Departments of Local Government and Communities, Finance, 
Regional Development, Lands, Transport and Treasury, each of 
which also run active wellness programs in Gordon Stephenson 
House and other regional locations that the Department of 
Planning may share. These partnerships are designed to promote 
professional networking and interaction between employees 
across agencies and advance the principle of sustainable interaction 
and engagement of State Government employees at Gordon 
Stephenson House.

Workers’ compensation and injury management
The Department maintains its relationships with RiskCover, 
WorkSafe and external medical practitioners to ensure that 
employees continues to be supported if injured or ill as a result 
of their work, and returned to work as soon as possible following 
both compensable and non-compensable injury. The Department 
has a low incident rate and has a 100% return to work rate of 
workers’ compensation claimants returning within 13 weeks.

Following a review of employees understanding of the 
Department’s processes supporting injury management and return 
to work, a review of procedures and training was undertaken to 
ensure that managers and supervisors are better able to support 
employees in these circumstances. These changes are supported in 
the OSH training for managers provided by the Department.



Occupational safety and health performance statistics

MEASURE ACTUAL ACTUAL AGAINST TARGET
2012/13 2014/15 Target Department result

No. of fatalities 0 0 0 Achieved
Lost time injury/disease incidence rate 1.01 0.46 0 or 10% reduction Y
Lost time injury/disease severity rate 40 0 0 or 10% reduction Y
Percentage of injured workers returned to work: Greater than or equal to 80%
within 13 weeks 60 100 Y
within 26 weeks 80 100 Y

Percentage of managers trained in OSH and injury management 72.47 77.77 Greater than or equal to 80% N

Managing our relationships

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 2011-2015
The Department is committed to improving access and inclusion for 
all its customer groups. The Department is currently in the process 
of implementing its Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 2011-15 
(DAIP) to achieve the seven outcomes defined in the Disability 
Services Act 1993.

Below is a summary of how the Department improved access to 
its products, services and consultation processes for people with 
disability during the year. 

OUTCOME 1
People with disability have the same opportunities as other 
people to access the services of, and any events organised by the 
Department.

• The Nocturnal Woylie Walk tours at Whiteman Park have been 
reviewed to accommodate customers with special needs. The 
walk element of the tour has been reduced to provide more time 
in the small enclosure during animal feeding.

• Due to an increase in education bookings at Whiteman Park from 
schools catering for children with special needs, Whiteman Park 
has adapted their education programs accordingly. 



OUTCOME 5
People with disability have the same opportunities as other people 
to make complaints to a public authority. 

• The Department is currently implementing amendments to the 
complaints handling system. 

• The handling of complaints from people with disability is covered 
as part of the Department’s Access and Inclusion Customer 
Service training package for staff who have customer interaction.

OUTCOME 6
People with disability have the same opportunities as other people 
to participate in any public consultation by the relevant public 
authority. 

• The Department continued to monitor its stakeholder database 
to ensure that it includes key disability groups, and that they are 
involved in the Department’s consultation processes.

OUTCOME 7
People with disability have the same opportunities as other people 
to obtain and maintain employment with a public sector.

• The Department continues to review its recruitment and 
selection processes in order to encourage a diverse pool of 
applicants to apply and to ensure that the process is accessible to 
all. 

• The DAIP is addressed at the Department’s Corporate Induction 
where attendance is mandatory for all new employees within 
three months of commencing employment.

• The Department is currently deploying a Leadership 
Development Framework which aims to strengthen leadership 
capabilities and competencies, and which will address 
communication techniques and support to staff on individual basis. 

OUTCOME 2
People with disability have the same opportunities as other people 
to access the building and facilities of the Department.

• The platform constructed at Whiteman Park Village to allow easy 
access for tram passengers came into service, and a ramp was 
constructed to allow wheelchair users improved tram access.

• Improvements were made to the platform at the Whiteman 
Park Mussel Pool Railway Station, and a ramp was constructed 
to allow easier access to wheelchair users.

• Approximately 400m of brick-paved pathways were re-laid at 
Whiteman Park to eliminate uneven surfaces. 

• Wheelchair access was provided from both sides of the Pavilion 
at Whiteman Park (prior to this the Pavilion was accessed from 
grassed surface). The Pavilion is the largest shelter available for 
hire in Whiteman Park and is a favoured by the elderly, people 
with limited mobility and wheelchair users. 

• Limestone paths have been re-laid and rolled at Whiteman Park.

OUTCOME 3
People with disability receive the same level of information from 
the Department in a format that will enable them to access 
information as readily as other people. 

• The Department’s website has been reviewed and meets 
the needs of people with disability by complying with W3C 
Guidelines (e.g. the new text resizing feature).

OUTCOME 4
People with disability receive the same level and quality of service 
from employees of a public authority as other people receive. 

• The Department’s Access and Inclusion Customer Service 
training package continued to be delivered to staff who have 
customer interaction. 



Key achievements during the year include:

• the Department worked in collaboration with eight other 
Government agencies based in Gordon Stephenson House to 
organise a joint NAIDOC Week 2015 celebration, which was 
attended by over 200 employees from those agencies; 

• relevant departmental policies, protocols and guidelines relating to 
our Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander stakeholders continued to 
be reviewed; 

• two cross-Cultural Awareness training sessions with a focus on 
Aboriginal cultures were held in October 2014 and February 2015 
for key frontline staff and volunteers at Whiteman Park; and

• the Department was successful in gaining a trainee placement 
at Whiteman Park through the Public Sector Commission’s 
(PSC’s) Aboriginal Traineeship Program, with the trainee due to 
commence in July 2015.

Freedom of Information
The Department and the Western Australian Planning Commission 
are considered one organisation for matters under the Freedom of 
Information Act 1992. The Department is responsible for processing 
FOI applications for both agencies, with the Assistant Director 
General as the designated decision-maker.

Under the Freedom of Information Act 1992 (the FOI Act), a 
departmental decision can be reviewed if an applicant is dissatisfied 
with that decision. Under Section 40 of the FOI Act, an application 
for internal review must be forwarded to the Department in writing 
within 30 calendar days of the date of decision. Matters still in dispute 
following an internal review can be submitted for external review to 
the Office of the Information Commissioner within 60 days from the 

Substantive equality
The Department is committed to ensuring its services meet the 
needs of people from Culturally and Linguistically Diverse (CALD) 
and Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander backgrounds. 

During 2014-15 no new reviews were undertaken as part of the 
Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2009-23: Implementation of the 
Policy Framework for Substantive Equality (Policy Framework), due to 
the Department’s focus being on implementing the outcomes of the 
following reviews:

• review of Customer Service at Whiteman Park – Substantive 
Equality Assessment 2011-12, which is now finalised; and

• review of the Aboriginal Communities Program Consultation 
Process – Substantive Equality Assessment 2012-13, which 
includes ongoing strategies. 

The Department undertakes regular reviews of policies and 
procedures affecting our Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
stakeholders and those from the CALD groups. The Department 
also ensures that all new policies, services and major initiatives are 
assessed for their impact on those stakeholders.

Reconciliation Action Plan 2013-2015
The Department is currently in the process of implementing 
its Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) for 2013-2015 as part of 
the Commonwealth and State whole-of-government policy, and 
in recognition of the importance of addressing the 17-year life 
expectancy gap between Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
peoples and other Australians.



• An online Record Keeping Awareness Training (RAT) course is 
available to all Planning employees. At 30 June 2015, 88 per cent 
of the Department’s employees had completed the course.

• The online RAT is mandatory for all employees. Training 
assessment is integrated into the package and feedback 
from those who have completed the course is reviewed and 
acknowledged. Agency-specific information on RAT processes is 
made available on the employee intranet. Content is reviewed 
periodically to ensure it reflects current operational and 
administrative practices and processes.

• Additionally, a RAT Refresher course has been introduced. It is 
completed by staff every 2 years to keep their recordkeeping 
knowledge up to date.

• A comprehensive training package in the use of the Objective 
system is available and all new staff must attend an Objective 
training session. Follow-up assistance is available through the 
Department’s Help Desk and a Training and Support officer. 
Quick reference guides are also available.

• A presentation on recordkeeping is included in the Department’s 
induction program to advise new employees of their roles and 
responsibilities in creating, managing and maintaining government 
records. All new employees are expected to complete the online 
RAT, which covers roles and responsibilities on recordkeeping 
and compliance with the Recordkeeping Plan. A brochure, 
Recordkeeping: Your Responsibilities is also available to assist 
employees deal with different aspects of recordkeeping. New 
employees are also required to undertake training in the use of 
the electronic records management tool, Objective.

date of the internal review decision. No fees or charges apply to 
internal or external FOI reviews.

Internal manuals and documents containing interpretations, 
guidelines, rules, policy, practices, precedents and particulars of any 
administrative scheme can be requested. These can be inspected at 
the agency, purchased or obtained free of charge.

During 2014/15, the Department received 115 FOI applications. Of 
these, six were subject to internal review and 10 were transferred 
to another agency. No applications were subject to external review.

Managing our resources
Recordkeeping
During 2014/15 the Department and the Western Australian 
Planning Commission continued to be committed to good 
recordkeeping under the requirements of the State Records Act 
2000. The Department’s Recordkeeping Plan (2012) detailing 
legacy recordkeeping policies, procedures and practices was 
approved by the State Records Office on 30 August 2012.

The State Records Commission’s minimum compliance 
requirements are:

• The Department uses Objective as its Electronic Document and 
Records Management System, which allows it to deal with digital 
as well as paper records within an integrated environment. A 
process of continuous improvement is also in place to improve 
performance and service and training sessions are made 
available for all employees on request.



Advertising and marketing expenditure
In accordance with section 175 ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 
the Department of Planning incurred the following expenditure 
with advertising, market research, polling, direct mail and media 
advertising. 

ADVERTISING AND MARKETING EXPENDITURE

Department of Planning

Advertising agencies nil

Direct mail organisations nil

Market research organisations nil

Media advertising organisations

Adcorp 16,025
Polling organisations nil

TOTAL 16,025

Governance and other disclosures
Ministerial directives
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 903(12), the Department 
of Planning received no Ministerial directives in 2014/15.

Pricing policies for services provided
The supply of goods and services undertaken by the Department 
of Planning represent works undertaken for the State Government 
and/or Western Australian Planning Commission on a cost recovery 
basis. Further details are available in the Financial Statements.

Probity
Contracts with senior officers
At 30 June 2015, other than normal contracts of employment 
of service, no senior officers, firms of which senior officers are 
members, or entities in which senior officers have substantial 
interests, had any interests in existing or proposed contracts  
with the Department of Planning. 



Major capital projects
Details of major capital projects� at 30 June 2015 in accordance with  
Treasurer’s Instruction 903 Section 13) (ii) (a) (b) are listed in the table below.

Projects remaining incomplete

PROJECT NAME
EXPECTED YEAR OF 

COMPLETION
ESTIMATED COST 

TO COMPLETE$’000

ESTIMATED 
TOTAL COST OF 

PROJECT$’000
Department of Planning

Accommodation Refurbishment 2022/23 2,343 6,022

Information & Communications Technology Infrastructure 2022/23 14,898 30,342

Minor Works Program 2022/23 6,359 20,123

Oakajee Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor 2017/18 39,510 39,510

Perry Lakes Redevelopment Project 2016/17 900 149,451

� Major projects valued at more than $5 million



Where to find us

Head office
Department of Planning

Gordon Stephenson House

140 William Street

Perth WA 6000

Phone: +61 8 6551 9000

Fax: +61 8 6551 9001

Website: www.planning.wa.gov.au

Email: corporate@planning.wa.gov.au
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Peel office
Unit 2B, 11–13 Pinjarra Road
Mandurah WA 6210
Phone: 9586 4680

Great Southern office
178 Stirling Terrace
Albany WA 6330
Phone: 9892 7333

Whiteman Park
Lord Street
Whiteman WA 6068
Phone: 9209 6000
Website: www.whitemanpark.com

Pilbara office
3-5 Welcome Road
Karratha WA 6714
Phone: 9159 6910

Mid West office
Level 2, 209 Foreshore Drive
Geraldton WA 6530
Phone: 9960 6999

Kimberley office
Unit 23 Shiba Lane Offices
Broome WA 6725
Phone: 9194 4900

South West office
Sixth floor, Bunbury Tower
61 Victoria Street,
Bunbury WA 6230
Phone: 9791 0577

1

2

3 4 5

6

7

8



APPENDICES

GAIL MCGOWAN

Director General

Gail McGowan was appointed the Director 
General of the Department of Planning in April 
2014 for a five-year term. 

Prior to her appointment, she was the Deputy 
Director General for the State Initiatives 
division of State Development, which involved 
leadership and management responsibility for 
projects of strategic significance to the State, 
project approvals and strategic industrial land. 
Her work centred on negotiating and liaising 
with stakeholders across industry, government 
and community.

Ms McGowan’s background includes positions 
as the Director of Policy and Education at 
WorkSafe and a number of years as the 
principal policy advisor and Chief of Staff to 
State and Federal Ministers of Parliament, with 
responsibility across a range of portfolio areas 
including employment and training, industrial 
relations and the environment.

DAVID SAUNDERS

A/Assistant Director General 
Strategic Corporate Support

David Saunders joined the Department 
in October 2007 after working in local 
government, State and Commonwealth public 
sector roles in WA, Queensland and NSW.

Mr Saunders has worked in senior roles with 
the NSW government in the planning and 
operation of the Sydney Olympic Games; 
and with the Australian and Queensland 
governments in the planning and gazettal of the 
statutory and strategic plan of management for 
the Wet Tropics World Heritage Area in North 
Queensland.

He has oversight of the Department’s 
corporate operations, including audit and risk 
management, financial management, information 
management and systems, legal services, 
geospatial systems and mapping as well as the 
WAPC’s significant property portfolio, including 
Whiteman Park. 

SUE BURROWS

Executive Director Perth and 
Peel Planning

Sue Burrows joined the Department of 
Planning as its first Independent Planning 
Reviewer, in 2010. In that role she provided 
assessment and advice on planning process 
matters to both the Department and the 
Western Australian Planning Commission, 
as well as independent counsel on planning 
applications to consultants, developers, local 
government and other stakeholders.

Ms Burrows has extensive strategic and 
statutory planning knowledge and experience, 
which includes more than 25 years across five 
local governments.

In her current role as Executive Director 
of Planning Perth and Peel, Ms Burrows is 
responsible for metropolitan planning across 
the Perth and Peel regions, operational policy 
coordination and planning administration.

Appendix 1: Executive descriptor – Term of appointment



KYM DAVIS

A/Executive Director Strategy, 
Policy and Projects

Kym Davis joined the Department t of Planning 
in September 2010 in the role of Planning 
Director Metropolitan North East Region 
overseeing the strategic direction and land-use 
planning for the region. 

Ms Davis is a Certified Practising Planner (CPP) 
and her commitment to the urban planning 
discipline spans 30 years.  Her extensive 
planning experience includes terms with three 
local governments and in the state public sector 
at the Swan River Trust and (then) Ministry 
for Planning, giving her substantial exposure to 
metropolitan and rural planning, major strategic 
projects, corporate planning and business 
management.

She has previously acted as Executive 
Director Perth, Peel, South West Planning and 
Strategy Division along with overseeing the 
Department’s contribution to the Strategic 
Assessment of Perth and Peel Project. 

In her current role, since March 2015, Ms Davis 
is responsible for state policy preparation and 
review, and research and modelling to support 
strategic planning.

DAVID MACLENNON

A/Executive Director Regional 
Planning and Strategy

David MacLennan joined the Department in 
March 2015. He is an experienced Department 
of Foreign Affairs and Trade (DFAT) officer 
with overseas postings in London, Lima, Mexico 
City and PNG. Mr MacLennan joined the 
Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade in 
1999 and was most recently the Head of the 
Political and Economic Branch at the Australian 
High Commission in London (2012-14). He was 
previously DFAT’s State Director in Western 
Australia (2010-2011).

Overseas, Mr MacLennan served as the DFAT 
APEC Exchange Officer in the Peruvian Ministry 
of Foreign Affairs (2008), Deputy Head of 
Mission in Mexico City (2005-2007) and as a 
Civilian Peace Monitor in Bougainville, Papua 
New Guinea (2001).

Previous DFAT placements in Canberra include 
with the Office of the Minister for Trade and 
the Trade Finance Section. Prior to joining DFAT, 
Mr MacLennan worked in the Department 
of Industry, Science and Resources. He holds 
a Master of Management degree from the 
Australian National University and a Bachelor 
of Arts degree from the University of Western 
Australia. 

Mr MacLennan’s current role includes the 
strategic and statutory planning for regional WA, 
with a current focus on progressing strategic 
planning and infrastructure frameworks for each 
of the eight planning regions across the State.



Appendix 2: Committee members sitting fees 2014/15

DAP SPECIALIST MEMBER 
NAME ��

FEES

Bartle, Megan Anne Adair 27,950

Birch, Ian Thomas 26,150

Butterly, Vernon Selby 800

Curtis, Brian 2,600

D'Alessandro, Luigi 27,350

Dick, Patrick Gordon Stuart 9,000

Drechsler, Paul John 12,100

Ellis, John Rolyston 1,650

Graham, Richard Victor 400

Gray, David 15,800

Higham, Clayton Morris 34,950

Hocking, Ian James 6,800

Hyde, Karen Suzanne 18,900

Ivanovich, Sasha 2,050

Johnson, Charles Ross Shopland 27,000

Koltasz, Eugene 16,200

Kotsoglo, Paul Basil 2,700

Lee, Peter Hugh 2,150

Mackay, Malcolm Alexander 3,300

McDowall, James Kent 9,250

Nicholson, Robert Charles 5,900

Snellgrove, Dominic Paul 450

Syme, John Ken 2,450

Towne, Stacey Darriel 4,500

Tyzack, Terence John 1,700

Zuideveld, Freerk 8,150

TOTAL 270,250

LG DAP MEMBER NAME � FEES

Adamos, Jim 2,500

Bailey, Kevin Bryce 450

Barrett, Walter Clifford 400

Baxi, Siddhartha 400

Bertola, Patrick Bruno 800

Best, Terrence John 50

Boothman, David 2,400

Brown, Julie 800

Budrikis, Andrus Jonas 400

Butler, Robert John 3,700

Cala, Colin Anthony 6,050

Campbell, Blair David 2,100

Carbone, Craig Phillip 800

Carey, John Newton 6,500

Carpenter, Ian William 400

Chester, John 2,900

Clark, Pauline 400

Clements, Paul 2,050

Congerton, Melvyn Paul 2,850

Cornish, Michael Christopher 3,200

Cridland, Glenn Michael 5,250

Cvitan, Srecko Frank 3,800

Daccache, George Joseph 800

Davies, Wesley Rosslyn 800

Driver, Russell 3,450

Emery, Robert Howard 400

Eustance, Elizabeth Joan 400

Fox, Stephen Hugh 800

LG DAP MEMBER NAME � FEES

Foxton, Nicole Kathleen 3,000

Graham, Laurence William 400

Greenway, Paula Ann 400

Hamilton-Prime, Christine Loui 800

Hawkins-Zeeb, Sharron 2,050

Hayes, John Keith 2,900

Haynes, Bruce Thomas 800

Henderson, Heather 450

Hipkins, Richard Maxwell 100

Hoffman, Ronald Francis 3,200

Houwen, Arnold Bartholomew 2,700

Howlett, Kelly 2,900

Italiano, Giovanni 4,500

Jackson, Tania Gae 800

Jacob, Gloria Ann 1,700

Jacob, Gloria Ann 800

Jeanes, Peter Ross 400

Kenyon, Terence Gilbert 400

Knight, Caroline 3,600

Lally, John Thomas 1,400

Lansdell, Allan George 800

Lee, Darren George 3,200

Limnios, Dimitrious 900

Long, Peter James 400

Macrae, Corinne Marie 4,050

Marks, Philip 4,150

Massie, William McKee 400

McIlwaine, Neil James 400

� DAP Specialist Members 
may sit on more than 
one panel and fees can 
include payment for State 
Administrative Tribunal 
Mediations, Hearings and 
Reconsiderations.

� DAP Member payments 
are based on a cost 
recovery model from 
DAP Application Fees



SWAN VALLEY PLANNING COMMITTEE

Gaudet, Joseph Alain 1,350

Gratte, Henry Victor 1,500

Griffiths, John David 1,200

Hunt, Brian Atlee 1,500

Lovreta, Jim Anthony 1,350

Taylor, Elizabeth 1,500

Tomlinson, Derrick Gordon 1,760

Trease, Darryl Raymond 1,050

Vuleta, Keith John 1,350

Zannino, Cosimo 1,640

TOTAL 14,200

LG DAP MEMBER NAME � FEES

Michael, David Robert 1,200

Mitchell, Ronald 2,400

Moore, Bruce Herbert 2,450

Norman, Michael John 2,550

Norton, Greg James 400

Pazolli, Nicholas 2,000

Pedro, Patricia Dawn 400

Pollock, Brett Richard 800

Portelli, Steven Anthony 500

Potter, Vicki Leanne 2,850

Pule, Gerard Anthony 50

Reeve-Fowkes, Carol Ann 2,600

Reid, Maree Anne 50

Reid, Matthew Paul 400

Reynolds, Linton 800

Robartson, Clive Walter 800

Robbins, Jason Thomas 400

Rossi, Roberto 4,150

Rowe, Murray John 2,950

Russell, Julie Alexia 400

Scaffidi, Lisa-Michelle 800

Shaw, Nigel Warren 50

Sheppard, Michael 50

Short, Lawrence Charles 50

Smith, Richard Radden 4,100

Stewart, Joy Margaret 4,900

Strachan, Jon Robert 1,450

Stubbs, Ian William 50

LG DAP MEMBER NAME � FEES

Sullivan, Andrew Charles 1,050

Thompson, Christine Irene 450

Toldo, Tiziano 1,600

Topelberg, Joshua Aaron 8,600

Trease, Darryl Raymond 800

Treloar, Annie Agatha 50

Trent, Kevin Richard 50

Tulloch, Alastair George 800

Walker, Richard Firth 400

Walsh, John Francis 400

Wellington, Dennis William 450

White, Kerry Marlene 850

White-Hartig, Fiona Anne 1,000

Wielinga, Caroline Margaret 400

Willox, Rodney Mervyn 5,300

Wilson, Gary William 2,450

Windram, Mark 800

Winzer, Ross Warren 50

Withers, Simon John 4,050

Wood, Dennis Cleve 1,650

Wood, Sherilyn Ivy 1,650

Yuryevich, Ronald Stanley 400

Zannino, Cosimo 2,100

Zelones, Henry Anthony 800

TOTAL 178,200

GRAND TOTAL 448,450



Appendix 3: Performance Indicator Review - non auditable�

Abolished Performance Indicator: Avoided land 
consumption costs
This is a measure of savings made through compacting residential 
areas rather than allowing them to be freely dispersed and 
widespread. Where the avoided land consumption costs trend 
upwards or remain static, the Department demonstrates success in 
minimising urban sprawl and leveraging from existing infrastructure 
to increase affordability for consumers.

Estimated infrastructure cost savings per lot are extracted from 
the WAPC publication Future Perth: Cost of Urban Form, Perth 
Metropolitan Region. This is multiplied by final lot approvals for 
2014/15 from the WAPC publication State Lot Activity Report to 
arrive at indicative infrastructure savings which represent avoided 
land consumption costs. Abolished Performance Indicator: People 
in the Metropolitan Region that live within ten minutes of a major 
public transport route.
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� The following performance indicators were abolished 
with Treasury approval in 2013/14. While no longer 
auditable, they are published in this appendix for 
comparison purposes with previous years. They will 
not be published from 2015/16.



Abolished Performance Indicator: People in the 
Metropolitan Region that live within ten minutes of a 
major public transport route
In order for transport systems to be accessible, they must be located 
within a reasonable distance of the commuter’s dwelling. In this 
context, accessibility refers to both train stations and bus stops that 
are within 10 minutes travel time. Travel mode includes pedestrian, 
bicycle and car trips. For bus stops the ‘ten minutes’ is on foot (10 
minutes is usually recognised as the pedestrian threshold for trips) 
where for railway stations the 10 minutes is by car or bicycle1. 

To calculate this indicator, modeling techniques are used to create 
buffers around bus stops and train stations within the Metropolitan 
Region. The Metropolitan Region is inclusive of the Perth 
Metropolitan Region plus the City of Mandurah and the Shire of 
Murray. 

The Census small area population statistics previously used 
to determine these indicators are no longer available as they 
terminated with the 2006 census. Census 2011 commenced a 
new census time-series, the Australian Statistical Geographical 
Standard (ASGS) and like previous censuses, the data is available 
only once every five years. Dwelling counts since 2011/12 have 
replaced population as they are reliable indicators of population and 
economic activity and are readily available on an annual basis from 
the WA Valuer General (Landgate).2

An increase in the percentage of people living within 10 minutes 
by foot, bicycle or car of a public transport route would indicate 
enhanced accessibility. 

1 Liveable Neighbourhoods Policy, 2004
2 Valuer General’s Office, 2014
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AUDITOR GENERAL INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor General 

Page 1 of 3 

7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth  MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849  TEL: 08 6557 7500  FAX: 08 6557 7600 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Parliament of Western Australia 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Department of Planning. 

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash 
Flows, Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service, Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by 
Service, and Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates for the 
year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, including Administered transactions and balances.  

Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Department of Planning at 30 June 2015 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions. 
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Department of Planning during the year ended 
30 June 2015. 

Controls exercised by the Department of Planning are those policies and procedures established 
by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions. 

Director General’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to 
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of 
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Department of Planning based on my audit conducted in accordance 
with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls 
to ensure that the Department complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation 
of relevant controls. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Planning are sufficiently adequate to 
provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2015. 

Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Department of Planning for the year ended 
30 June 2015.  

The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 

Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to 
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
and Assurance Standards.  
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Department of Planning are relevant and 
appropriate to assist users to assess the Department’s performance and fairly represent 
indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2015. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Department of Planning for the year ended 30 June 2015 included on the Department’s website. 
The Department’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Department’s website. This 
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Department’s website. The auditor’s 
report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. 
It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from 
these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial statements and 
key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a 
website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key 
performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website version of the 
financial statements and key performance indicators. 
 

 
GLEN CLARKE 
DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL 
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia 
21 September 2015 
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Certification of Financial Statements 
 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

 
The accompanying financial statements of the Department of Planning have been prepared in compliance with 
the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the 
financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 and the financial position as at 30 June 2015. 
 
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the 
financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  
John Deery 
Chief Finance Officer 
Department of Planning 
 
21 September 2015 

Gail McGowan  
Accountable Authority 
 
 
21 September 2015 
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Development Assesment Panels



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
 
 

3 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

   
2015 

 
2014 

  
Note $ 000 

 
 $ 000  

COST OF SERVICES 
     Expenses 
     Employee benefits expense 
 

6 51,704  
 

51,766  
Supplies and services 

 
7 23,280  

 
9,828  

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
 

8 2,063  
 

552  
Accommodation expenses 

 
9 4,929  

 
5,802  

Grants and subsidies expense 
 

10 4,696  
 

2,239  
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 

 
11 7  

 
- 

Other expenses 
 

12 1,286  
 

861  
Total cost of services 

  
87,965  

 
71,048  

      Income 
     Revenue 
     User charges and fees 
 

13 1,449  
 

1,164  
Grants and subsidies revenue 

 
14 868  

 
1,664  

WAPC service delivery agreement revenue 
 

15 44,481  
 

26,481  
Other revenues 

 
16 13  

 
185  

Total revenue 
  

46,811  
 

29,494  

      
      Total income other than income from State Government 

 
46,811  

 
29,494  

      NET COST OF SERVICES 
  

41,154  
 

41,554  

      INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 
 

17 
   Service appropriation 

  
46,070  

 
38,992  

Services received free of charge 
  

2,826  
 

2,082  
Royalties for Regions Fund 

  
5,443  

 
2,317  

Total income from State Government 
  

54,339  
 

43,391  

      SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 
  

13,185  
 

1,837  

      
      TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
PERIOD 

  
13,185  

 
1,837  

 
Refer to the Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service. 
 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2015 

   
2015 

 
2014 

  
Note $ 000 

 
 $ 000  

ASSETS 
     Current Assets 
     Cash and cash equivalents 
 

18 16,390  
 

5,537  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

 
19 3,546  

 
357  

Receivables 
 

20 17,080  
 

8,960  
Other assets 

 
22 697  

 
168  

Total Current Assets 
  

37,713  
 

15,022  

      
      Non-Current Assets 

     Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
 

19 - 
 

1,637  
Amounts receivable for services 

 
21 15,788  

 
15,623  

Plant and equipment 
 

23 1,144  
 

1,452  
Intangible assets 

 
24 6,593  

 
7,922  

Total Non-Current Assets 
  

23,525  
 

26,634  

      TOTAL ASSETS 
  

61,238  
 

41,656  

      LIABILITIES 
     Current Liabilities 
     Payables 
 

26 4,522  
 

1,925  
Provisions 

 
27 10,773  

 
9,475  

Other liabilities 
 

28 5  
 

1  
Total Current Liabilities 

  
15,300  

 
11,401  

      Non-Current Liabilities 
     Provisions 
 

27 2,190  
 

2,491  
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

  
2,190  

 
2,491  

      TOTAL LIABILITIES 
  

17,490  
 

13,892  

      NET ASSETS 
  

43,748  
 

27,764  

      EQUITY 
 

29 
   Contributed equity 

  
14,333  

 
11,534  

Accumulated surplus 
  

29,415  
 

16,230  
TOTAL EQUITY 

  
43,748  

 
27,764  

 
Refer to the Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service. 
 
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 
  

  

Contributed 
equity 

 
Accumulated 

surplus  
 Total  
equity  

 
Note $ 000  $ 000   $ 000  

     Balance at 1 July 2013 29 6,209  14,393  20,602  

     Surplus/(deficit) 
 

- 1,837  1,837  

Total comprehensive income for the period 
 

- 1,837  1,837  

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: 
   

 
Capital appropriation 

 
5,325  - 5,325  

Total  
 

5,325  1,837  7,162  
Transfer from debit contributed equity  to Accumulated 
Surplus 

 
- - - 

Balance at 30 June 2014 
 

11,534  16,230  27,764  

     Balance at 1 July 2014 
 

11,534  16,230  27,764  
Surplus/(deficit) 

 
-  13,185  13,185  

Total comprehensive income for the period 
 

11,534  29,415  40,949  

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: 
    Capital appropriation 
 

2,799  - 2,799  
Total  

 
2,799  - 2,799  

  
      

Balance at 30 June 2015 
 

14,333  29,415  43,748  
 
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

   
2015 

 
2014 

  
Note $ 000 

 
 $ 000  

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 
     Service appropriation 
  

45,905  
 

38,778  
Capital appropriations 

  
2,799  

 
5,325  

Royalty for Regions Fund 
  

5,443  
 

2,331  
Net cash provided by State Government 

  
54,147  

 
46,434  

      Utilised as follows: 
     CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
     Payments 
     Employee benefits 
  

(49,857) 
 

(52,983) 
Supplies and services 

  
(19,361) 

 
(7,994) 

Accommodation  
  

(4,907) 
 

(5,855) 
Grants and subsidies 

  
(3,578) 

 
(2,228) 

GST payments on purchases 
  

(2,715) 
 

(2,128) 
Other payments 

  
(736) 

 
(1,814) 

      Receipts 
     Sale of goods and services 
  

1,450  
 

1,163  
Grants and subsidies 

  
979  

 
1,430  

GST receipts on sales 
  

52  
 

416  
GST receipts from taxation authority 

  
2,286  

 
1,688  

WAPC service level agreement receipts 
  

36,905  
 

23,640  
Other receipts 

  
15  

 
551  

Net cash used in operating activities 
 

 30(b)  (39,467) 
 

(44,114) 

      CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
     Purchase of non-current physical assets 
  

(2,275) 
 

(4,693) 
Net cash used in investing activities 

  
(2,275) 

 
(4,693) 

      CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
     Proceeds from borrowings 
  

- 
 

- 
Repayment of borrowings 

  
- 

 
- 

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 
  

- 
 

- 

      Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
  

12,405  
 

(2,373) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
period 

  
7,531  

 
9,904  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD  30(a)  19,936  
 

7,531  
 
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 
 

 

Integrated land and 
infrastructure 

policy development 

Land accessibility 
planning and policy 

development Total 

 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

 
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 

COST OF SERVICES 
      Expenses 
      Employee Benefits Expense 20,516  21,330  31,188  30,436  51,704  51,766  

Supplies and services 7,980  4,360  15,301  5,468  23,280  9,828  
Depreciation and amortisation expense 830  222  1,234  330  2,064  552  
Accommodation expenses 1,813  2,238  3,116  3,564  4,929  5,802  
Grants and subsidies 4,143  1,775  553  464  4,696  2,239  
Loss on disposal of non-current assets - - 7  - 7  - 
Other expenses 387  124  899  737  1,286  861  
Total cost of services 35,667  30,049  52,298  40,999  87,965  71,048  

       Income 
      User charges and fees 2  6  1,447  1,158  1,449  1,164  

Grants and subsidies revenue 400  1,097  468  567  868  1,664  
WAPC Service Level Agreement 9,572  2,117  34,909  24,364  44,481  26,481  
Other revenue 6  123  7  62  13  185  
Total income other than income from 
State Government 9,980  3,343  36,831  26,151  46,811  29,494  

 
            

NET COST OF SERVICES 25,688 26,706 15,466 14,848 41,154 41,554 

       INCOME FROM STATE 
GOVERNMENT 

      Service appropriation 18,510  15,672  27,560  23,320  46,070  38,992  
Services received free of charge 2,187  931  3,256  1,386  5,443  2,317  
Royalties for Regions Fund 1,135  837  1,691  1,245  2,826  2,082  
Total income from State Government 21,832 17,440 32,507 25,951 54,339 43,391 

       Surplus/(deficit) for the period (3,856) (9,266) 17,041  11,103  13,185  1,837  
 
The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service 
As at 30 June 2015 

Integrated land and 
infrastructure 

policy development 

 Land 
accessibility 

planning tenure 
and policy 

development   Total 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 

 ASSETS  
 Current Assets  15,152 5,956 22,561 9,066 37,713 15,022 
 Non-current Assets 9,452 14,355 14,073 12,279 23,525 26,634 
 TOTAL ASSETS  24,604 20,311 36,634 21,345 61,238 41,656 

 LIABILITIES  
 Current Liabilities  6,148 3,746 9,152 7,655 15,300 11,401 
 Non-current Liabilities 880 1,023 1,310 1,468 2,190 2,491 
 TOTAL LIABILITIES  7,028 4,769 10,463 9,123 17,490 13,892 

 NET ASSETS 17,576 15,542 26,172 12,222 43,748 27,764 

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 2015 2015 2014 
Estimate Actual Variance Actual Actual Variance 

$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 
DELIVERY OF SERVICES 
Item 34 Net amount appropriated to deliver 
services 44,761 45,587 826 45,587 37,464 8,123 
Amount authorised by other statutes: 

- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 483 483 - 483 469 14 
Section 25 Transfer of Service Appropriation - - - - 1,059 (1,059) 
Total appropriations provided to deliver 
services 45,244 46,070 826 46,070 38,992 7,078 

CAPITAL 
Item 124 Capital contribution 2,799 2,799 - 2,799 5,325 (2,526) 
Total capital contribution 2,799 2,799 - 2,799 5,325 (2,526) 

GRAND TOTAL 48,043 48,869 826 48,869 44,317 4,552 

Details of expenses by services 
Integrated land and infrastructure policy 
development 38,945 35,667 (3,278) 35,667 30,049 5,618 
Land accessibility planning and policy 
development 53,010 52,298 (712) 52,298 40,999 11,299 
Total cost of services 91,955 87,965 (3,990) 87,965 71,048 16,917 
Less: Operating revenues 45,408 46,811 1,403 46,811 29,494 17,317 
Net cost of services 46,547 41,154 (5,393) 41,154 41,554 (400) 
Adjustments (i) (1,303) 4,916 6,219 4,916 (2,562) 7,478 
Total appropriations provided to deliver 
services 45,244 46,070 826 46,070 38,992 7,078 

Capital expenditure 
Purchase of non-current physical assets 2,799 2,275 (524) 2,275 4,693 (2,418) 
Adjustments for other funding sources - - - - 632 (632) 
Capital contribution (appropriation) 2,799 2,275 (524) 2,275 5,325 (3,050( 

DETAILS OF INCOME ESTIMATES 
Revenues disclosed as administered 
revenues 160 119 (41) 119 1,707 (1,588) 

(i) Adjustments comprise movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and
superannuation.

Note 35 Explanatory statement and Note 43 Explanatory statement for Administered Items provides details of any 
significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2015 and between the actual results for 2015 and 2014. 
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Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ending 30 June 2015 

1 Australian Accounting Standards 

General 

The Department’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards.  The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ refers to the Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Department has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative 
dates. 

Early adoption of standards 

The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 
Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of 
any Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Department for 
the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2015 

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) General statement

The Department is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions.  Several
of these are modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board.

Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of
that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost
convention, except for land which has been measured at fair value.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($ 000).

In the process of reporting the Department as a single entity, all intra entity transactions and balances have been
eliminated.

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Development Assesment Panels



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

(c) Reporting entity

The reporting entity comprises the Department.

Purpose

The Department’s purpose is to provide leadership in land use planning in Western Australia.

Services

The Department provides the following services:

Service 1: Integrated land and infrastructure policy development

Integrated land use and transport systems contribute to the state by shaping the pattern of development and
influencing location, scale, density, design and mix of land uses.

Service 2: Land accessibility planning and policy development

Ensures that sufficient land is available for purchase for both residential and commercial purpose, by minimising
land supply delays, controlling lot sizes and therefore the costs of infrastructure required to service each lot and
providing resources to the Western Australian planning Commission.

The Department administers assets, liabilities, income and expenses on behalf of Government which are not
controlled by, nor integral to the functions of the Department.  These administered balances and transactions are
not recognised in the principal financial statements of the Department but schedules are prepared using the same
basis as the financial statements and are presented at note 42 Disclosure of Administered income and expenses by
service and note 44 Administered assets and liabilities.

(d) Contributed equity

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers
in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before
such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.  Capital appropriations have been designated as
contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have
been credited directly to Contributed Equity.

The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-
reciprocal.  See note 29 Equity.
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(e) Income 
 

Revenue recognition 
 
 Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.  Revenue is recognised for the major 

business activities as follows: 
 
 Sale of goods 
 Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of 

ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 
 
 Provision of services 
 Revenue is recognised by the stage of completion of the transaction. 
 
 The revenue from other operating activities including provision of services and the sale of assets are recognised 

when the Department has passed control of the goods or other assets or delivery of the service to the customer. 
Recoups of operating activities are recognised when invoiced.   

 
 Interest 
 Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  
 

Service appropriations 
 Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Department gains control 

of the appropriated funds.  The Department gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are 
deposited into the Department’s bank account or credited to the Amounts receivable for services (holding account) 
held at Treasury.  See note 16 Income from State Government for further detail. 

 
Net appropriation determination 

 The Treasurer may make a determination providing for prescribed receipts to be retained for services under the 
control of the Department.  In accordance with the most recent determination, as quantified in the 2014-15  Budget 
Statements, the Department retained  47.75 million in 2015 (32.24 million in 2014) from the following: 

 
Development Assessment Panels, Services provided to the Commonwealth for Indian Ocean Territories 
Program, Planning for Aboriginal Communities from the Department of Housing, recoups for services 
provided to the Western Australian Planning Commission and other revenue. 

 
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Department obtains control over the assets comprising the 
contributions, usually when cash is received. 
 
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value.  
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would 
be purchased if not donated. 
 
Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the Department obtains 
control over the funds.  The Department obtains control of the funds at the time the funds are deposited into the 
Department’s bank account. 
 

 
Gains 
Realised or unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the disposal of 
non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 
 

(f) Borrowing costs 
  

 Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred. 
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(g) Property, plant and equipment  
 
 Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising 
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than 
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

 
 Initial recognition and measurement 
 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 
 

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the 
date of acquisition.  

 
Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition of an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and 
historical cost for all other property, plant and equipment.  Land is carried at fair value less accumulated impairment 
losses.  All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land is determined on the basis of current market 
buying values determined by reference to recent market transactions.   
 
In the absence of market-based evidence, the fair value of land is determined on the basis of existing use.  This 
normally applies where land use is restricted.   Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the 
cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement 
cost.   
 
Land is independently valued by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and 
recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the 
end of the reporting period.   

 
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use 
basis to assets and in determining estimated useful life.  Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the 
evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use assets. 
 
Derecognition 
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 
 
Asset revaluation surplus 
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets 
on a class of asset basis. 

 
Depreciation 
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a 
manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 
 
Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which 
are reviewed annually.  Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

 
  Computer hardware  3 to 7 years  
  Refurbishments, furniture and fittings 3 to 10 years 
  Office equipment  5 years 
   
     
 Land is not depreciated.  Assets under construction are not depreciated until commissioned.  
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(h) Intangible assets 
  

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or 
more are capitalised.  The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life.  Costs incurred 
below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

 
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

 
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit 
(estimated useful life) on the straight line basis using rates which are reviewed annually. All intangible assets 
controlled by the Department have a finite useful life and zero residual value.   
 
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

• Software not integral to the operation of related hardware 3 to 10 years 
• Licences  3 years 

  
Computer software 
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and equipment. Software 
that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset.  Software costing less than 
$5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.   
 
Licenses 
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

 
(i) Impairment of assets 
 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.  Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the 
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.   Where an asset measured at cost is written down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a previously revalued asset is written 
down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income.  As 
the Department is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

 
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, 
where the replacement cost of an asset is falling or where there is a significant change in the useful life.  Each 
relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the 
level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from 
falling replacement costs. 

 
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment. 

 
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the 
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.  Surplus assets carried at fair value have 
no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence.  Where fair 
value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the 
recoverable amount is measured.  Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. 
 
See note 25 Impairment of assets for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. 
See note 2(o) Receivables and note 20 Receivables for impairment of receivables. 

  

Department of Planning
Development Assesment Panels



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
 
 

15 

(j) Leases 
 

The Department holds operating leases for head office and a number of branch office buildings, motor vehicles and 
office equipment.  Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the 
pattern of benefits derived from the leased properties. 

 
  

(k) Financial instruments 
 
 In addition to cash and cash equivalents, the Department has two categories of financial instrument: 

• Receivables; and 
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 
 
Financial Assets  

• Cash and cash equivalents 
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
• Receivables 
• Amounts receivable for services 

 
Financial Liabilities 

• Payables 
 
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the 
transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. 

 
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no 
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 
 

(l) Cash and cash equivalents 
  
 For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents (and restricted cash and cash 

equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

 
(m) Accrued salaries 
 

Accrued salaries (refer note 26 Payables) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial 
year.  Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end.  The Department considers the 
carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value. 
 
The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 19 Restricted cash and cash equivalents) consists of amounts 
paid annually into a suspense account over a period of 10 financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow 
in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur in that year instead of the normal 26.  No interest is received on this 
account. 
 

(n) Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account) 
  
 The Department receives funding on an accrual basis.  The appropriations are paid partly in cash and partly as an 

asset (holding account receivable).  The accrued amount receivable is accessible on the emergence of the cash 
funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset replacement. 

 
See also note 17 Income from State Government and note 21 Amounts receivable for services. 
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(o) Receivables 
 
 Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts 

(i.e. impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as 
uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful 
debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Department will not be able to collect the debts.  The 
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.   

 
 See note 2(k) Financial Instruments and note 20 Receivables. 
 
(p) Payables 
 

 Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Department becomes obliged to make future payments 
as a result of a purchase of assets or services.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are 
generally settled within 30 days.   

 
 See note 2(k) Financial Instruments and note 26 Payables. 

 
(q) Borrowings 
  
 All loans payable are initially recognised at fair value, being the net proceeds received.  Subsequent measurement 

is at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
 
(r) Provisions 
 
 Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or 

constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period.   

 
 See note 27 Provisions. 
 

(i) Provisions – employee benefits 
 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees' services up to the end of the 
reporting period. 

 
Annual leave  
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is 
therefore considered to be ‘other long-term employee benefits’.  The annual leave liability is recognised and 
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the 
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels 
including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of 
employee departures and periods of service.  The expected future payments are discounted using market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
 
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Department does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
 
 
Long service leave  
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is 
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled 
using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
 
  

Department of Planning
Development Assesment Panels



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
 
 

17 

(i) Provisions – employee benefits (continued) 
 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels 
including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of 
employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields 
at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
 
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Department does not have 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
Conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Department has 
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite 
years of service. 

 
Deferred leave 
 
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to 
self-fund an additional 12 months leave in the fifth year of the agreement.  The provision recognises the value 
of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year.  This liability is measured on the same basis as 
annual leave.  Deferred leave is reported as a current provision as employees can leave the scheme at their 
discretion at any time. 
 
Purchased leave 
 
The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to 
self-fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year.  The provision recognises the value of salary 
set aside for employees and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled.  This liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave. 
 
Superannuation 
 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector 
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with the legislative requirements. Eligibility 
criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to commencement 
and implementation dates. 
 
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new 
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme 
closed to new members since 1995. 
 
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension 
Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  
Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme 
(GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became able to 
choose their preferred superannuation fund.  The Department makes concurrent contributions to GESB and 
other funds on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation 
Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the 
Department’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension 
Scheme and GSS. 
 
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. 
However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined 
contributions) made by the Department to GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to the related 
superannuation liability. 
 
The Department has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded 
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from the 
Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent 
contributions made by the Department to the GESB. 
 
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the 
Treasurer for the employer’s share. 

 
See also note 2(s) Superannuation expense. 
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(ii) Provisions – other 
 

Employment on-costs 
 
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are 
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  
Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the Department’s 
‘Employee benefits expense’.  The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’.  
 
See note 12 Other Expenses and note 27 Provisions. 
 

(s) Superannuation expense 
 
 The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises of employer contributions paid 

to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the GESBS, or other superannuation funds.  The employer 
contribution paid to the GESB in respect of the GSS is paid back to the Consolidated Account by the GESB. 

 
(t) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 
 
 Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Department would have otherwise purchase if 

not donated are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably 
measured.   A corresponding expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of assets are recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position. 

 
Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income from 
State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

  
(u) Comparative figures 
 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current 
financial year. 

 
 
3 Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies 
 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of 
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The 
Department evaluates these judgements regularly. 
 
Operating lease commitments 
The Department has entered into a number of leases for buildings for branch office accommodation. Some of these 
leases relate to buildings of a temporary nature and it has been determined that the lessor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, these leases have been classified as operating leases. 

 
 
4 Key sources of Uncertainty 
 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year. 
 
Long Service Leave 
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service leave provision include 
expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in 
these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 
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5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 
  
 Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 
 

The Department has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective, or adopted, for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 that impacted on the Department: 
  

Int 21 Levies 

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a 
government levy imposed should be recognised.  There is no financial impact for the 
Department at reporting date. 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Department as it does 
not impact accounting for related bodies and the Department has no interests in other 
entities. 

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint 
Ventures, introduces new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that 
exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the 
arrangement. 

There is no financial impact for the Department  

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements in 
AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in 
Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 

There is no financial impact 

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier 
standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of 
separate financial statements.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number 
of clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest. 

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model Authority as it 
does not hold investments in associates and joint ventures. 

AASB 1031 Materiality 

This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance 
on materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other 
Australian pronouncements. There is no financial impact. 
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AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 

This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose financial 
statements of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. The 
Authority will be required to disclose additional budgetary information and explanations 
of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial 
impact. 

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and 
Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 
133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17] 

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of 
AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. There is no financial impact for the 
Model Department. 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities [AASB 132] 

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies 
identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of 
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement 
systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial 
Assets.   

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no financial 
impact. 

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and 
Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139] 

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a 
derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated from one 
counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations.  The 
Department does not enter into derivatives or hedges, therefore there is no financial 
impact. 

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation 
Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 
1049]. 

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining 
whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial returns are not a 
key attribute of the investor’s relationship.  The Standard has no financial impact in its 
own right, rather the impact results from the adoption of the amended AASB 10. 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality 
and Financial Instruments. 

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the 
deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2014 (Part B).  Part B of the Standard has no financial impact. 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

Part A of this Standard consists primarily of clarifications to Australian Standards and 
has no financial impact for the Department. 

Part B of this Standard has no financial impact as the Department contributes to 
schemes that are either defined contribution plans, or deemed to be defined 
contribution plans. 

Part C of this Standard has no financial impact as it removed references to AASB 1031 
Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards. 
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AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-
Profit Public Sector Entities 

This Standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the reporting burden 
associated with various disclosures required by AASB 13 for assets within the scope of 
AASB 116 that are held primarily for their current service potential rather than to 
generate future net cash inflows. It has no financial impact. 

 
 

 
Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
 
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer’s 
Instruction 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncement's.  Consequently, the 
Department has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact 
the Department.  Where applicable, the Department plans to apply the following Australian Accounting Standards 
from their application date 
  Operative for 

reporting 
periods 

beginning 
on/after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting 
treatments. 

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory 
Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures amended the 
mandatory application date of this Standard to 1 January 2017.  The 
Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of 
the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

This Standard establishes the principles that the Department shall apply to 
report useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, 
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a 
contract with a customer. The Department has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 
127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 
127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in 
December 2010. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by 
AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018.  The Authority has not 
yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments. 

Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 
1 January 2017 (Part C). The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently 
deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.  The Authority has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9. 

1 Jan 2015 
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  Operative for 
reporting 
periods 

beginning 
on/after 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 1 Jul 2015 

 
Part E of the Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential 
amendments to other Standards.  It has not yet been assessed by the 
Authority to determine the application or potential impact of the Standard. 

 

AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for 
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & 11] 

The Authority establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and 
does not routinely acquire interests in Joint Operations.  Therefore, there is 
no financial impact on application of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of 
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Model 
Authority as depreciation and amortisation is not determined by reference 
to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of future economic 
benefits. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance 
of AASB 15. The Department has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. 
 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
(December 2014) 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance 
of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Department has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 
 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 2014-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
(December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 
(December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)]  

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
(December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010), 
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 
2014. The Department has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 2014-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity Method in 
Separate Financial Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128]  

This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially amends AASB 1 
and AASB 128, to allow entities to use the equity method of accounting for 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate 
financial statements. The Department has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 
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  Operative for 
reporting periods 
beginning on/after 

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 
to Australian Accounting Standards 2012–2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 
11, 110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140] 

These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial 
Reporting Standard Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle in 
September 2014, and editorial corrections. The Department has 
determined that the application of the Standard has no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –Disclosure Initiative: 
Amendments to AASB 101 [AASB 7, 101, 134 & 1049] 

This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the 
disclosure requirements in AASB 101. Specifically, the Standard proposes 
narrow-focus amendments to address some of the concerns expressed 
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure 
entities are able to use judgement when applying a Standard in determining 
what information to disclose in their financial statements. There is no 
financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the 
Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality  

This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, allowing that 
Standard to effectively be withdrawn. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2015 

AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related 
Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 
1049] 

The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by 
not-for-profit public sector entities. Implementation guidance is included to 
assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities. 
There is no financial impact. 

1Jul 2016 
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
6 Employee benefits expense 

 

 
Wages and salaries (i) 46,844  

 
47,064  

 
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (ii) 4,496  

 
4,502  

 
Other related expenses  364  

 
200  

  
51,704 

 
51,766  

     (i) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus fringe benefits tax 
component, leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component 
and $1,321,000 for voluntary severance payments. 

(ii) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESB Super Scheme 
and other eligible funds. 

 
Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation insurance are included at 
note 12 Other expenses.  The employment on-costs liability is included at note  
27 Provisions. 

 
 
7 Supplies and services 
 

 
Communications 349  

 
314  

 
Consultants and contractors 12,717  

 
6,002  

 
Consumables 6,477  

 
3,394  

 
Repairs and maintenance 3,602  

 
60  

 
Travel 135  

 
58  

  
23,280  

 
9,828  

       
8 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

 

 
Depreciation 

   
 

Refurbishments, furniture and fittings 43  
 

38  

 
Plant and equipment 12  

 
12  

 
Computer hardware  220  

 
180  

 
Total depreciation 275  

 
230  

     
 

Amortisation 
   

 
Licences 106 

 
214  

 
Software 1,682 

 
108  

 
Total amortisation 1,788  

 
322  

     
 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense 2,063  
 

552  
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
9 Accommodation expenses 
 

 
Lease rentals 4,628  

 
5,658  

 
Cleaning 301  

 
144  

  
4,929  

 
5,802  

      
10 Grants and subsidies expense 
 

 
Area Assistance Grant 79  

 
- 

 
Bushfire Risk Assessor Training and Accreditation Subsidy 126  

 
- 

 
Coastal Zone Management Program 744  

 
- 

 
Great Southern Planning and Infrastructure Framework - 

 
50  

 
Mandurah Central Revitalisation 383  

 
54  

 
Northern Towns Development Fund 3,271  

 
1,775  

 
Rockingham Kwinana Development Office - 

 
360  

 
Other 93  

 
- 

  
4,696  

 
2,239  

      
11 Loss on disposal of non-current assets 
 

 
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 

   
 

Plant and equipment - 
 

- 

     
 

Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed 
   

 
Plant and equipment (7) 

 
- 

 
Net gain/(loss) (7) 

 
- 

      
12 Other expenses  
 

 
Employment on-costs (i) 164  

 
376  

 
Audit cost 123  

 
130  

 
Donations and sponsorships 116  

 
14  

 
Doubtful debts expense 3  

 
- 

 
Board and sitting fees 639  

 
313  

 
Forfeit of previous years revenue 122 

 
- 

 
Other 119 

 
28  

  
1,286  

 
861  

      
 (i) Includes worker’s compensation insurance and other employment on-costs.   

The on-costs liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service 
leave liability is included at note 27 Provisions.  Superannuation contributions 
accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not 
included in employment on-costs. Includes on-costs charged on provision of 
Indian Ocean Territories Plan. 
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
13 User charges and fees 
 

 
Development Assessment Panel fees 1,446  

 
1,152  

 
Other 3  

 
12  

  
1,449  

 
1,164  

      
14  Grants and subsidies revenue 
 

 
Commonwealth grants 94  

 
91  

 
General government grants 774  

 
1,522  

 
Other - 

 
51  

  
868  

 
1,664  

      
15 WAPC service delivery agreement revenue 
 

 
WAPC fee transfer revenue 15,506  

 
15,224  

 
WAPC service delivery agreement 28,975  

 
11,257  

  
44,481  

 
26,481  

      
16 Other revenues 
 

 
Recoups of operating expenses 12  

 
184  

 
Other 1  

 
1  

  
13  

 
185  

      
17 Income from State Government 
 

 
Appropriation received during the year 

   
 Service appropriations  46,070  

 
38,992  

 
     
Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.  Appropriation 
revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable 
(holding account) comprises the depreciation expense for the year and any agreed 
increase in leave liabilities during the year. 
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
17 Income from State Government (continued) 
 

 
Services received free of charge from other State government  

   
 

agencies during the period: 
   

 
Commissioner of Main Roads 23  

 
1  

 
Department of Finance 1,248  

 
1,585  

 
Landgate 773  

 
216  

 
State Solicitor's Office 780  

 
154  

 
Department of Water 2  

 
126  

  
2,826  

 
2,082  

     Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as 
revenue at fair value of the assets and/or services that can be reliably measured 
and which would have been purchased if they were not donated.  Contributions of 
assets or services in the nature of contributions by owners are recognised directly to 
equity. 

 
 
Royalty for Regions Fund 
 

 
Regional Workers Incentives - District Allowance 25  

 
34  

 
Funding for Northern Planning Program Fund 5,418  

 
2,283  

  
5,443  

 
2,317  

     This is the sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’.  The 
recurrent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas. 
 

 
18 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 16,390 

 
5,537  

      
These cash and cash equivalents include $4,465,000 (2013 $4,036,000) capital 
contribution and funds available to meet capital expenditure commitments. 
 
 
 

19 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
 

 
Current 

   
 

Royalties for Regions (i) 1,664  
 

357  

 
Accrued salaries suspense account (ii) 1,882  

 
- 

  
3,546  

 
357  

     
 

Non-current 
   

 
Accrued salaries suspense account (ii) - 

 
1,637  

      (i) Unspent funds committed to projects in WA regional areas. 
 (ii) Funds held in the suspense account used for the purpose of meeting the 27th 

pay in a financial year that occurs every 11 years. 
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2015 
 

2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
20 Receivables 
 

 
Current 

   
 

Receivables 16,381  
 

8,669  

 
Allowance for impairment of receivables (3) 

 
- 

 
Goods and services tax receivable 702  

 
291  

  
17,080  

 
8,960  

     
 

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables 
  

     
 

Balance at start of period - 
 

- 

 
Doubtful debts expense  3  

 
- 

 
Amounts written off during the period - 

 
- 

 
Impairment losses reversed during the period - 

 
- 

 
Balance at end of period 3  

 
- 

 
The Department does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as 
security for receivables. 
See also note 2(o) Receivables and note 36 Financial Instruments 
 

 
21 Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account) 

     
 

Current - 
 

- 

 
Non-current 15,788  

 
15,623  

  
15,788  

 
15,623  

      
Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations (see note 2(n) 
Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)).  It is restricted in that it can 
only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liabilities. 
 

 
22 Other assets 
 

 
Current 

   
 

Prepayments 697  
 

168  

  
697  

 
168  
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23 Plant and equipment 
 

 
2015 

    
 

 Cost   Accum.   Carrying  

 
 value   depr.   amount  

 
 $ 000   $ 000   $ 000  

     At cost:  
    Refurbishments, furniture and fittings  433  (107)  326  

 Office equipment  120  (46)  74  
 Computer hardware  1,206  (524)  682  
 Works in progress  62  - 62  

 
1,821  (677)  1,144  

     
 

 
2014 

    
 

 Cost   Accum.   Carrying  

 
 value   depr.   amount  

 
 $ 000   $ 000   $ 000  

     At cost:  
    Refurbishments, furniture and fittings  433  (64)  369  

 Office equipment  57  (33)  24  
 Computer hardware  1,276  (490)  786  
 Works in progress  273  - 273  

 
2,039  (587)  1,452  

     
 
 
 
 

    
    
    
    

   

30 

 
R

econciliations of the carrying am
ounts of plant and equipm

ent at the beginning and end of the financial year are set out below
. 

 

 

 C
arrying 

am
ount at 

the start of 
the period  

 A
dditions  

 D
isposals  

 Transferred 
to/from

 
construction 
in progress  

 Im
pairm

ent 
losses  

 
D

epreciation  
 Transfers / 

adjustm
ents  

 C
arrying 

am
ount at 

the end of 
the period  

 
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
2015 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 R
efurbishm

ents, furniture and fittings  
369  

- 
- 

- 
- 

(43) 
- 

326  
 O

ffice equipm
ent  

24  
62  

- 
- 

- 
(12) 

- 
74  

 C
om

puter hardw
are  

786  
123  

(7) 
- 

- 
(220) 

- 
682  

 W
orks in progress   

273  
62 

- 
- 

- 
- 

(273) 
62 

 Total  
1,452  

247 
(7) 

- 
- 

(275) 
(273) 

1,144  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 C
arrying 

am
ount at 

the start of 
the period  

 A
dditions  

 D
isposals  

 Transferred 
to/from

 
construction 
in progress  

 Im
pairm

ent 
losses  

 
D

epreciation  
 Transfers / 

adjustm
ents  

 C
arrying 

am
ount at 

the end of 
the period  

 
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
 $ 000  

 $ 000  
2014 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 R
efurbishm

ents, furniture and fittings  
232  

- 
- 

175  
- 

(38) 
- 

369  
 O

ffice equipm
ent  

36  
- 

- 
- 

- 
(12) 

- 
24  

 C
om

puter hardw
are  

414  
441  

- 
111 

- 
(180) 

- 
786  

 W
orks in progress   

484  
75 

- 
(286) 

- 
- 

- 
273 

 Total  
1,166  

516  
- 

- 
- 

(230) 
- 

1,452 
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30 

 
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the financial year are set out below. 
 

 

 Carrying 
amount at 

the start of 
the period  

 Additions   Disposals  

 Transferred 
to/from 

construction 
in progress  

 Impairment 
losses  

 
Depreciation  

 Transfers / 
adjustments  

 Carrying 
amount at 
the end of 
the period  

 
 $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000  

2015 
         Refurbishments, furniture and fittings  369  - - - - (43) - 326  

 Office equipment  24  62  - - - (12) - 74  
 Computer hardware  786  123  (7) - - (220) - 682  
 Works in progress   273  62 - - - - (273) 62 
 Total  1,452  247 (7) - - (275) (273) 1,144  

           
 

 

 Carrying 
amount at 

the start of 
the period  

 Additions   Disposals  

 Transferred 
to/from 

construction 
in progress  

 Impairment 
losses  

 
Depreciation  

 Transfers / 
adjustments  

 Carrying 
amount at 
the end of 
the period  

 
 $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000  

2014 
         Refurbishments, furniture and fittings  232  - - 175  - (38) - 369  

 Office equipment  36  - - - - (12) - 24  
 Computer hardware  414  441  - 111 - (180) - 786  
 Works in progress   484  75 - (286) - - - 273 
 Total  1,166  516  - - - (230) - 1,452 
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24 Intangible assets 

 
2015 

    
 

 Cost   Accum.   Carrying  

 
 value   depr.   amount  

 
 $ 000   $ 000   $ 000  

     At cost:  
    Licences  703  (684)  19  

 Software  4,868  (1,899)  2,969  
 Works in progress  3,605  - 3,605  

 
9,176  (2,583) 6,593 

     
 

 
2014 

    
 

 Cost   Accum.   Carrying  

 
 value   depr.   amount  

 
 $ 000   $ 000   $ 000  

     At cost:  
    Licenses  703  (578)  125  

 Software  543  (217)  326  
 Works in progress  7,471  - 7,471  

 
8,717  (795)  7,922  
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Reconciliations of the carrying amount of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the financial year are set out below. 
 

 

 Carrying 
amount at 

the start of 
the period  

 Additions   Disposals  

 Transferred 
to/from 

construction 
in progress  

 Impairment 
losses  

 
Depreciation  

 Transfers / 
adjustments  

 Carrying 
amount at 
the end of 
the period  

 
 $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000   $ 000  

2015 
         Licences  125  - - - - (106) - 19  

 Software  326  - - 4,325  - (1,682) - 2,969  
 Works in progress   7,471  1,407  - (4,325) - - (948) 3,605 
 Total  7,922  1,407  - - - (1,788) (948) 6,593 

           
 

          

 

Carrying 
amount at 

the start of 
the period 

Additions Disposals 

Transferred 
to/from 

construction 
in progress 

Impairment 
losses Depreciation Transfers / 

adjustments 

Carrying 
amount at 
the end of 
the period 

 
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 

2014 
         Licences  339 - - - - (214) - 125 

 Software  434 - - - - (108) - 326 
 Works in progress   3,551 3,920 - - - - - 7,471 
 Total  4,324 3,920 - - - (322) - 7,922 
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25 Impairment of assets 
 

There were no indications of impairment to plant and equipment or intangible assets at 30 June 2015. 
 
The Department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the end of the reporting 
period and at the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use. 
 
 
 

  
2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
26 Payables 
 

 
Current 

   
 

Trade creditors 2,555  
 

788  

 
Accrued salaries 1,967  

 
1,137  

  
4,522  

 
1,925  

     See also note 2(p) Payables and note 36 Financial instruments. 
 
 
27 Provisions 
 

 
Current 

   
 

Employee benefits provision 
   

 
Annual leave (i) 4,696  

 
4,273  

 
Long service leave (ii) 6,114  

 
5,195  

 
Purchased leave provision (iii) (85) 

 
(60) 

  
10,725  

 
9,408  

 
Other provisions 

   
 

Employment on-costs (iv) 48  
 

67  

  
10,773  

 
9,475  

     
 

Non-current 
   

 
Employee benefits provision 

   
 

Long service leave (ii) 2,180  
 

2,474  

     
 

Other provisions 
   

 
Employment on-costs (iii) 10  

 
17  

  
2,190  

 
2,491  
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
27 Provisions (continued) 
 

(i) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after reporting period.  
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows: 

 

 
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 3,338  

 
2,844  

 
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 1,358  

 
1,429  

  
4,696  

 
4,273  

     (ii) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after reporting period.  
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows: 
 

 
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 2,130  

 
1,567  

 
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 6,164  

 
6,102  

  
8,294  

 
7,669  

     (iii) Purchased leave scheme has been classified as current as leave must be taken 
by 31 December each calendar year or the value of the untaken purchased leave 
is paid back to the employee. 

 

 
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period (85) 

 
(60) 

 
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period - 

 
-  

  
(85) 

 
(60) 

  
 

   
(iv) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the 

payment of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance.  
The provision is the present value of expected future payments.  The associated 
expense is disclosed in note 12 Other expenses. 
 

 
 Movements in other provisions: 

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee 
benefits, are set out below: 
 
 
Employment on-cost provisions: 
 

 
Carrying amount at the start of the period 84  

 
63  

 
Additional (reversals of) provisions recognised 53  

 
32  

 
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits (43) 

 
(47) 

 
Unwinding of the discount (36) 

 
36  

 
Carrying amount at end of period 58  

 
84  
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
28 Other liabilities 
 

 
Other liabilities 5  

 
1  

  
5  

 
1  

      
29 Equity  
 

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Department on 
behalf of the community.  Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of 
the Department.   
 

 
Contributed equity 

   
     
 

Balance at the start of the period 11,534  
 

6,209  

     
 

Contributions by owners 
   

 
Capital appropriation  2,799  

 
5,325  

 
Total contributions by owners 2,799  

 
5,325  

     
 

Transfer of debit balance to Accumulated surplus - 
 

- 

 
Balance at the end of the period 14,333  

 
11,534  

     
 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
   

 
Balance at the start of the period 16,230  

 
14,393  

 
Result for the period 13,185  

 
1,837  

 
Balance at the end of the  period 29,415  

 
16,230  

     
 

Total Equity at the end of the period 43,748  
 

27,764  

       
 
 

30  Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows  
 
(a) Reconciliation of cash 
 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 
 

 
Cash and cash equivalents (i) 16,390  

 
5,537  

 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (ii) 3,546  

 
1,994  

  
19,936  

 
7,531  

     (i) These cash and cash equivalents include $4,465,000 (2013 $4,036,000) capital 
contribution and funds available to meet capital expenditure commitments. 

(ii) See note 19 Restricted cash and cash equivalents. 
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
30  Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 
 
 
(b) Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) 

operating activities 
 

 
Net cost of services (41,154) 

 
(41,554) 

 
Non cash items: 

   
 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,063  
 

552  

 
Doubtful debts expense 3  

 
- 

 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets 7  

 
- 

 
Forfeit of previous years revenue 122  

 
- 

 
Resources received free of charge 2,826  

 
2,082  

 
Expenses previously held in construction in progress 1,222  

 
- 

     
 

(Increase)/decrease in assets 
   

 
Current receivables (iii) (7,713) 

 
(1,764) 

 
Other current assets (529) 

 
230  

     
 

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities 
   

 
Current payables 2,596  

 
(246) 

 
Current provisions 1,298  

 
(1,268) 

 
Other current liabilities 4  

 
(1,941) 

 
Non-current provisions (300) 

 
(543) 

 
Net GST receipts/(payments) (377) 

 
(24) 

 
Change in GST in receivables/payables (i) 465  

 
362  

 
Net cash used in operating activities (ii) (39,467) 

 
(44,114) 

      (i) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 
(ii) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables. 
(iii) Note that the Australian Taxation office (ATO) receivables/payable in respect of GST and the 

receivable/payable in respect of sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these 
items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
31 Services provided free of charge 
 

During the period the following services were provided to other agencies free of 
charge for functions outside the normal operations of the Department 
 

 
Department of Transport - PlanViewWA access 18  

 
- 

 
Department of Education Services - Non-Government schools mapping 11  

 
- 

 

Department of Local Government and Communities - Local Government 
reform mapping 25  

 
- 

  
54  

 
- 

      
32 Commitments  
 
  

(a) Capital expenditure commitments 
    

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional 
to the amounts reported in the financial statements, are payable as follows: 
 

 
Within one year 267  

 
3,655  

 
Later than one year but not later than five years - 

 
- 

 
Later than five years - 

 
- 

  
267  

 
3,655  

 
(b) Other expenditure commitments 

    
Other expenditure commitments (including software licences and maintenance) 
contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities, are 
payable as follows: 
 

 
Within one year 2,217  

 
3,592  

 
Later than one year but not later than five years 55  

 
- 

 
Later than five years - 

 
- 

  
2,272  

 
3,592  

 
(c) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments 

    
Commitments in relation to non-cancellable operating lease rentals contracted for 
at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities in the financial 
statements are payable as follows: 

 

 
Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows: 

   
 

Within one year 4,778  
 

5,549  

 
Later than one year but not later than five years 17,899  

 
21,411  

 
Later than five years 20,893  

 
30,352  

  
43,570  

 
57,312  

      
These commitments are all inclusive of GST 
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33 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 

Contingent liabilities 
 
The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the financial statements: 
 
Litigation in progress 
 
There is a possible liability claim due to a request to repeal the Port Kennedy Management Board. 
 
 
 
Contingent assets 
 
In addition to the assets incorporated in the financial statements, the Department has the following contingent 
assets: 
 
Insurance claims: 
 
The Department has 12 pending insurance claims ($12,740) that may affect the financial position. 

  
 

 
34 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 

 
On 15 September 2015, the Minister for Planning approved the variation to the Service Delivery Agreement 
(SDA) with Western Australian Planning Commission to reflect the actual expenditure incurred for services 
provided by the Department.  The total cost of services provided by the Department is reported at $44.5 million, 
consistent with the SDA and includes $6.5 million of unallocated expenses. 
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35 Explanatory Statement 
 

Major variances between estimates (original budget) and actual results for 2015, and between the actual results for 
2014 and 2015 are shown below. Major variances are considered to be those greater than 10% or $10 million. 

 
Note 

Original 
Budget Actual Actual 

Variance 
between 
estimate 

and actual 

Variance 
between 

actual 
results 

from 2015 
and 2014 

  
2015 2015 2014 

  
  

$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 

       Statement of Comprehensive Income 
      

       COST OF SERVICES 
      Expenses 
      Employee benefits expense 
 

51,268  51,704  51,766  436  (62) 
Supplies and services A 23,947  23,280  9,828  (667) 13,452  
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 B 165  2,063  552  1,898  1,511  
Accommodation expenses C 5,130  4,929  5,802  (201) (873) 
Grants and subsidies expense 2 D 6,635  4,696  2,239  (1,939) 2,457  
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 

 
- 7  - 7  7  

Other expenses 3 E 4,810  1,286  861  (3,524) 425  
Total cost of services 

 
91,955  87,965  71,048  (3,990) 16,917  

       Income 
      Revenue 
      User charges and fees 4 F 1,701  1,449  1,164  (252) 285  

Grants and subsidies revenue 5 G 544  868  1,664  324  (796) 
WAPC service delivery agreement revenue  H 43,163  44,481  26,481  1,318  18,000  
Other revenues I 0  13  185  13  (172) 
Total revenue 

 
45,408  46,811  29,494  1,403  17,317  

       
       Total income other than income from State 
Government 45,408  46,811  29,494  1,403  17,317  

       NET COST OF SERVICES 
 

46,547  41,154  41,554  (5,393) (400) 

       INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 
      Service appropriation J 45,244  46,070  38,992  826  7,078  

Services received free of charge 6 K 1,794  2,826  2,082  1,032  744  
Royalties for Regions Fund L 5,531  5,443  2,317  (88) 3,126  
Total income from State Government 

 
52,569  54,339  43,391  1,770  10,948  

       SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 
 

6,022  13,185  1,837  7,163  11,348  

       
       TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 6,022  13,185  1,837  7,163  11,348  
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35 Explanatory Statement (continued) 

 
Note 

Original 
Budget Actual Actual 

Variance 
between 
estimate 

and actual 

Variance 
between 

actual 
results 

from 2015 
and 2014 

  
2015 2015 2014 

  
  

$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 
Statement of Financial Position 

      
       ASSETS 

      Current Assets 
      Cash and cash equivalents 7 M 8,541  16,390  5,537  7,849  10,853  

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8 N 1,987  3,546  357  1,559  3,189  
Receivables 9 O 7,311  17,080  8,960  9,769  8,120  
Other assets 10 P 378  697  168  319  529  
Total Current Assets 

 
18,217  37,713  15,022  19,496  22,691  

       
       Non-Current Assets 

      Restricted cash and cash equivalents Q - - 1,637  - (1,637) 
Amounts receivable for services 

 
15,788  15,788  15,623  - 165  

Plant and equipment 11 R 14,615  1,144  1,452  (13,471) (308) 
Intangible assets 12 S 1,076  6,593  7,922  5,517  (1,329) 
Other 

 
4  - - (4) - 

Total Non-Current Assets 
 

31,479  23,525  26,634  (7,954) (3,109) 

       TOTAL ASSETS 
 

49,696  61,238  41,656  11,542  19,582  

       LIABILITIES 
      Current Liabilities 
      Payables T 4,730  4,522  1,925  (208) 2,597  

Provisions U 10,755  10,773  9,475  18  1,298  
Other liabilities 

 
49  5  1  (44) 4  

Total Current Liabilities 
 

15,534  15,300  11,401  (234) 3,899  

       Non-Current Liabilities 
      Provisions 13 V 3,020  2,190  2,491  (830) (301) 

Other 
 

14  - - (14) - 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

 
3,034  2,190  2,491  (844) (301) 

       TOTAL LIABILITIES 
 

18,568  17,490  13,892  (1,078) 3,598  

       NET ASSETS 
 

31,128  43,748  27,764  12,620  15,984  

       EQUITY 
      Contributed equity 14 W 16,789  14,333  11,534  (2,456) 2,799  

Accumulated surplus 15 X 14,339  29,415  16,230  15,076  13,185  
TOTAL EQUITY 

 
31,128  43,748  27,764  12,620  15,984  
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35 Explanatory Statement (continued) 

 
Note 

Original 
Budget Actual Actual 

Variance 
between 
estimate 

and 
actual 

Variance 
between 

actual 
results 

from 
2015 

and 
2014 

  
2015 2015 2014 

  
  

$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 
Statement of Cash Flows 

      
       CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 

      Service appropriation Y 45,079  45,905  38,778  826  7,127  
Capital appropriations Z 2,799  2,799  5,325  0  (2,526) 
Royalty for Regions Fund AA 5,531  5,443  2,331  (88) 3,112  
Net cash provided by State Government 

 
53,409  54,147  46,434  738  7,713  

       Utilised as follows: 
      CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
      Payments 
      Employee benefits 
 

(50,812) (49,857) (52,983) 955  3,126  
Supplies and services 16 BB (22,103) (19,361) (7,994) 2,742  (11,367) 
Accommodation  CC (5,118) (4,907) (5,855) 211  948  
Grants and subsidies 17 DD (6,635) (3,578) (2,228) 3,057  (1,350) 
GST payments on purchases 18 EE (4,340) (2,715) (2,128) 1,625  (587) 
Other payments 19 FF (4,810) (736) (1,814) 4,074  1,078  

     
 

 Receipts 
    

 
 

Sale of goods and services 
20 
GG 1,701  1,450  1,163  (251) 287  

Grants and subsidies 21 HH 544  979  1,430  435  (451) 
GST receipts on sales II 50  52  416  2  (364) 
GST receipts from taxation authority 22 JJ 4,290  2,286  1,688  (2,004) 598  
WAPC service level agreement receipts 23 KK 43,163  36,905  23,640  (6,258) 13,265  
Other receipts LL - 15  551  15  (536) 
Net cash used in operating activities 

 
(44,070) (39,467) (44,114) 4,603  4,647  

       CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
      

Purchase of non-current physical assets 
24 

MM (2,799) (2,275) (4,693) 524  2,418  
Net cash used in investing activities 

 
(2,799) (2,275) (4,693) 524  2,418  

       CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
      Proceeds from borrowings 
 

- - - - - 
Repayment of borrowings 

 
- - - - - 

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities - - - - - 

       Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,540  12,405  (2,373) 5,865  14,778  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,988  7,531  9,904  3,543  (2,373) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 
PERIOD 10,528  19,936  7,531  9,408  12,405  
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35 Explanatory Statement (continued) 
 

Major Estimate and Actual (2015) Variance Narratives for Controlled Operations 
 

1) Depreciation exceeded estimates by $1.9m (1,150%) as the budget was based on existing capitalised assets at the 
start of the year whereas the increase in depreciation charge includes additional depreciation on a new Financial 
System, Geospatial Information System and other intangible assets added from Construction in progress. 

 
2) Grants and subsidies underspent by $1.9m (29%) mainly due to lower than anticipated activity on aspects of the 

Northern Planning Program and a delay in the Oakajee Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor Project. 
 
3) Other Expenses underspent by $3.5m (73%) as the estimate included a budget for WAPC compensation that was 

paid by WAPC. In addition, board fees, audit fees and miscellaneous project expenses that were underspent during 
the year. 

 
4) User fees and charges generated less than estimates by $0.3m (15%) due to lower than projected numbers of 

Development Assessment Panels application received during 2014-15. 
 
5) Grants and subsidies revenue exceeded estimates by $0.3m (60%) as funding was received for development of 

Regional and Urban Scenario Planning (RUSP) program through Royalties for Regions from Landgate. 
 
6) Services received free of charge exceeded budget by $1.0m (58%) due to an increase in services received from the 

State Solicitor’s Office for Town Planning litigation and Landgate providing an increase in Land Information Data. 
 
7) Cash exceeded estimated by $7.8m (92%) mainly due to underspend across different categories of expenditure 

including operational costs, planning projects, capital projects and other expenses. 
 
8) Current Restricted Cash exceeded estimates by $1.6m (78%) as Northern Planning Program and Pilbara Cities 

projects underspent against the revenue received from the Royalties for Regions fund. 
 
9) Receivables exceeded estimates by $9.8m (134%) as a result of the increase in the WAPC debtor account in 

relation to the outstanding SDA receivable. 
 
10) Other Assets exceeded estimates by $0.3m (84%) due to an increase of software licence maintenance 

prepayments. 
 
11) Plant and equipment was lower than budget estimates by $13.5m (92%).  The budget was overstated as all the 

construction in progress budget balance was allocated to plant and equipment, including construction in progress 
for intangible assets.  This differs from the actual treatment of intangible assets.  During the period the construction 
in progress reconciliations resulted in a number of intangible assets being either capitalised or expensed therefore 
reducing this balance.  The remaining variance is due to accumulated depreciation balance increases. 

 
12) Intangible assets exceeded budget by $5.5m (513%) as during the year the Financial Management Information 

System and various Geospatial Information Systems were commissioned from construction in progress.  
 
13) Non-current provisions were lower than estimates by $0.8m (27%) due to the budget being based on  

2013-14 staff levels. The Department implemented a voluntary severance program and has tight control over filling 
of vacant positions with permanent staff during the year. 

 
14) The contributed equity is lower than the estimates by $2.5m as when decommissioned from the Office of Shared 

Services, the Department received the capital contribution for implementation of the financial and payroll solutions 
twice in June and July 2013 separately. Thus the original estimates included a higher budget.  The additional 
contribution had reverted back to Treasury. 

 
15) The accumulated surplus exceeded the estimates by $8.5m due to the budget being based on the accumulated 

surplus opening balance. This combined with underspends during the year resulted in the large variance.  
 
16) Supplies and services payments underspent by $2.7m (12%) due to lower than anticipated payments on projects, 

thus reducing contractors and consultant costs.  
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35 Explanatory Statement (continued) 
 
17) Grants and subsidies payment underspent by $3.1m (46%) due to lower than anticipated activity on aspects of the 

Northern Planning Program and a delay in the Oakajee Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor Project. 
 
18) GST payments on purchases underspent by $1.6m (37%) due to various underspending and timing differences. 
 
19) Other payments underspent by $4.1m (85%) due to lower than anticipated expenditure on operations and projects 

through the SDA on behalf of the WAPC.  
 
20) Sale of goods and services (fees and charges revenue) trailed estimates by $0.3m (15%) mainly due to lower than 

projected numbers of Development Assessment Panel applications received during 2014-15. 
 
21) Grants and subsidies revenue exceeded estimates by $0.4m (80%) as additional funds were received for 

development of RUSP program from Royalties for Regions from Landgate which were not originally budgeted for. 
 
22) GST receipts from taxation authority trailed estimates by $2.0m (47%) due mainly to a reduction in revenue 

received and timing differences. 
 
23) Receipts from the SDA trailed estimates by $6.3m (14%) due to expenditure by the Department on behalf of the 

WAPC being less that than budget.  
 
24) Purchase of non-current physical assets underspent by $0.5m (19%) due to deferral of capital work plans and 

underspend on related projects. 
 
 

Major Actual (2015) and Actual (2014) Variance Narratives for Controlled Operations 
 
A) Supplies and services expenses increased by $13.5m (136%). $10.8m due to changes to the SDA whereby all 

WAPC costs are paid by DoP.  The WAPC costs are made up of $4.9m in Consultants and Contractors, $3.5m in 
Repairs and Maintenance and $2.3m in Consumables.  The remaining increase is due to an increase of $0.7m in 
Services received free of charge expense, $0.8m increase in Software Licence Maintenance and an increase in 
Consultants and Contractors.  

 
B) Depreciation expenses increased by $1.5m (273%) due to capitalisation of the new Financial Management 

Information System and various Geospatial Information System intangible assets capitalised during the financial 
year. 

 
C) Accommodation expenses decreased by $0.9m (15%) as a result of the reallocation of staff to reduce floor space.  
 
D) Grants and subsidies expenses increased by $2.5m (110%) mainly related to an increase of $1.5m in Royalty for 

Regions Northern Towns Development Fund expenditure, $0.7m in Coastal Zone Management Program 
expenditure transferred from WAPC under the new SDA arrangements and $0.3m in Mandurah Central 
Revitalisation program.   

 
E) Other expenses increased by $0.4m (49%) due to an increase of $0.3m in Board and Sitting Fees due to new SDA 

arrangements with WAPC and $0.1m for the forfeit of previous year revenue. 
 
F) User charges and fees revenue increased by $0.3m (24%) due to an increase in the number of Development 

Assessment Panel applications received in 2014-15 compared with 2013-14. 
 
G) Grants and subsidies revenue reduced by $0.8m (48%) as there was no funding received for the Oakajee Narngulu 

Infrastructure Project funding in 2014-15, however in 2013-14, $0.4m was received. 
 
H) WAPC service level agreement revenue increased by $18.0m (68%) due to a change in the WAPC SDA 

arrangements. 
 
I) Other revenue decreased by $0.2m (93%) due the conclusion of contributions to the Tourism Taskforce Review in 

2013-14. 
 
J) Service Appropriation increased by $7.1m (18%) to provide for Department’s funding deficit in accommodation and 

salaries and wages and the commencement of the Strategic Assessment Perth and Peel Region Project. 
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35 Explanatory Statement (continued) 
 
K) Services received free of charge increased by $0.7m (36%) due the State Solicitor’s Office providing additional free 

of charge services for Town planning litigation and Landgate providing an increase in Land Information Data. 
 
 
L) Royalties for Regions Fund increases by $3.1m (135%) due to the delay of 2013-14 funds not being received until 

2014-15. 
 
M) Cash increased by $10.9m (196%) due to underspent cash from capital projects, Strategic Assessment Perth Peel 

Region projects and other expenses. 
 
N) Current Restricted Cash increased by $3.2m (893%) due to underspend on Northern Planning Program funded by 

Royalties for Regions and the transfer of the accrued salaries suspense account from non-current to current. 
 
O) Current Receivables increased by $8.1m (91%) due to an increase in WAPC SDA accounts receivable. 
 
P) Other Current Assets increased by $0.5m (314%) due software maintenance prepayments for the Finance System 

and GIS assets. 
 
Q) Non-current Restricted Cash decreased by $1.6m (100%) relating to the transfer of the accrued salaries suspense 

account to current as 27 pays will occur in 2015-16. 
 
R) Plant and equipment decreased by $0.3m (21%) due to expenditure previously capitalised as Construction in 

Progress being expensed during the year. 
 
S) Intangible assets decreased by $1.3m (17%) due to amortisation during the financial year and previously capitalised 

expenditure in Construction in Progress being expensed during the year.  
 
T) Current Payables increased by $2.6m (135%) due to an increase in trade creditors as a result of charges in the 

WAPC SDA. 
 
U) Current Provisions increased by $1.3m (14%) due to a 2.5% salary increase during the year, the transfer of Long 

Service leave liabilities from non-current provisions and an increase in annual leave and long service leave 
entitlement accruals.  

 
V) Non-current provisions decreased by $0.3m (12%) due to the transfer of Long Service Leave from non-current 

provisions to current provisions.  
 
W) Contributed equity increased by $2.8m (24%) due to the receipt of Capital Appropriations during 2014-15. 
 
X) The increase in accumulated surplus of $6.6m (41%) was due to an increase in the surplus for the period in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
 
Y) Service Appropriation increased by $7.1m (18%) due to additional funding for Department’s funding deficit in 

accommodation and salaries and commencement of the Strategic Assessment Perth and Peel Region Project. 
 
Z) Capital Appropriation decreased by $2.5m (142%) due to capital projects for Shared Service Rollout and RUSP 

Location Information Strategy being carried over from 2013-14 to 2014-15. 
 
AA) Royalties for Regions Fund increased by $3.1m (133%) due to the delay in disbursement of 2013-14 funds until 

2014-15. 
 
BB) Supplies and services payments increased by $11.4m (142%) due to the new WAPC SDA, where all WAPC costs 

are to be included in the Department and majority of these costs are related to professional services.   
 
CC) Accommodation payments decreased by $0.9m (16%) as a result of reallocation of staff to reduce floor space to 

prompt work place efficiency.  
 
DD) Grants and subsidies increase of $1.4m (61%) mainly related the transfer of the Coastal Zone Management 

Program from WAPC under the new SDA and the Northern Towns Development Fund grants.   
 
EE) GST payments on purchases increased by $0.6 (28%) due to an increase in GST collected from the payment of 

invoices. 
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35 Explanatory Statement (continued) 
 
FF) Other payments decreased by $1.1m (59%) due to an offset of $0.2m recoup of the previous year’s WAPC Board 

and Sitting Fees paid in 2014-15 and an extraordinary amount of $0.6m paid to WAPC in 2013-14 which inflated 
that year. 

 
GG) Sale of goods and services increased by $0.3m (25%). This resulted from an increase in the number of 

Development Assessment Panels applications received during 2014-15. 
 
HH) Grants and subsidies receipts decreased by $0.5m (32%) due to a one off grant received from the Department of 

Commerce for the preparation of a structure plan to guide the development of Bentley Technology Precinct in 2013-
14. 

 
II) GST receipts on sales reduced $0.4m due to a reduction in GST received on revenue. 
 
JJ) GST receipts from the taxation authority increased by $0.6m due to an increase in the net of GST payments on 

purchases and GST receipts 
 
KK) WAPC service level agreement receipts increased by $13.3m (56%) as a new Service Delivery Agreement with 

WAPC commenced from 1 July 2014, whereby all WAPC expenses are paid through DOP resulting in higher 
receipts.  

 
LL) Other receipts reduce by $0.5m (97%) due to a reduction in Other revenue recoups during 2014-15. 
 
MM) Purchase of non-current physical assets decreased by $2.4m (52%) due to the deferral of capital work plans and 

underspend on these projects. 
 
 
 
36 Financial instruments 
 
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

 
Financial instruments held by the Department are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, 
receivables and payables.  The Department has limited exposure to financial risks.  The Department’s overall risk 
management program focuses on managing the risks identified below. 

 
 Credit risk 

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Department’s receivables defaulting on their contractual 
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Department.  
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised 
financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment, as shown in 
the table at note 36(c) Financial instruments disclosures and note 19 Receivables.  
 
Credit risk associated with the Department’s financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts 
receivable for services (holding account). For receivables other than government, the Department trades only with 
recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Department has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and 
services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored 
on an ongoing basis with the result that the Department’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the 
reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 
 

 Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk arises when the Department is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 
 
The Department is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.  
 
The Department has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by 
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 
 
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) 
 
 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the 
Department’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The Department does not trade in foreign 
currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks (for example, equity securities or commodity prices 
changes).    
 
As detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis at note 36(c) Financial instruments disclosures,   the Department 
is not exposed to interest rate risk because apart from minor amounts of restricted cash, all other cash and cash 
equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and have no borrowings. 

 
 

(b) Categories of financial instruments 
 
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are as follows: 

  
2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

 
 

 
Financial Assets 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents 16,390  
 

5,537  

 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,546  

 
1,994  

 
Loans and receivables (i) 16,378  

 
8,669  

 
Amounts receivable for services 15,788  

 
15,623  

 
Total Financial Assets 52,102  

 
31,823  

     
 

Financial Liabilities 
   

 
Payables 4,522  

 
1,925  

 
Total Financial Liabilities 4,522  

 
1,925  

      
 (i) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory 

receivable).
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

(c) Financial instrument disclosures 
  
 Credit Risk  
 

 The following table details the Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Department’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of 
financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets.  The table is based on information provided to senior management of the 
Department.  

 
The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds. 
  
Aged analysis of financial assets 

   
 Past due but not impaired    

 

Carrying 
Amount 

Not past 
due and 

not 
impaired 

up to 1 
month 

1-3 
months 

3 
months 

to 1 
year 

1-5 
years 

More 
than 5 
years 

Impaired 
Financial 
Assets 

 
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 

   
  

 
 

  
  

Financial Assets 
  

  
 

 
  

  
2015 

  
  

    
  

Cash and cash equivalents 16,390  16,390  - - - - - - 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,546  3,546  - - - - - - 
Receivables (i) 16,378  16,312 - 3 38 25 - - 
Amounts receivable for services 15,788  15,788  - - - - - - 

 
52,102 52,036 - 3 38 25 - - 

   
  

    
  

2014 
  

  
    

  
Cash and cash equivalents 5,537  5,537  - - - - - - 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,994  1,994  - - - - - - 
Receivables (i) 8,669  8,389  131  - 146  3  - - 
Amounts receivable for services 15,623  15,623  - - - - - - 

 
31,823  31,543  131  - 146  3  - - 

 
(i) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 
 
(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued) 
  
 Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure 
 

The following table details the Department’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. 
The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 
 
Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

  
Interest rate exposure 

 
Maturity dates 

      
  

 
 

   

 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
Carrying 
Amount 

Fixed 
interest 

rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Nominal 
amount 

Up to 1 
month 

1-3 
months 

3 
months 

to 1 
year 

1-5 
years 

more 
than 5 
years 

 
% $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 

2015 
     

  
     Financial Assets 

     
  

     Cash and cash equivalents 0.00 16,390  - - 16,390  16,390  16,390  - - - - 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 0.00 3,546  - - 3,546  3,546  1,664 - 1,882  - - 
Receivables (i)  16,378  - - 16,378  16,378 16,378 - - - - 
Amounts receivable for services  15,788  - - 15,788  15,788  - - - 15,788  - 

  
52,102 - - 52,102 52,102 34,432 - 1,882  15,788  - 

      
  

     Financial Liabilities    
     

  
     Payables 

 
4,522  - - 4,522  4,522  4,522  - - - - 

  
4,522  - - 4,522  4,522  4,522  - - - - 
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 
 
(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued) 
 

Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

 

   
Interest rate exposure 

 
Maturity dates 

       
  

 
 

   

  

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
Carrying 
Amount 

Fixed 
interest 

rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Nominal 
amount 

Up to 1 
month 

1-3 
months 

3 
months 

to 1 year 
1-5 

years 

more 
than 5 
years 

  
% $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 

 
2014 

     
  

     
 

Financial Assets 
     

  
     

 
Cash and cash equivalents 0.00 5,537  - - 5,537  5,537  5,537  - - - - 

 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 0.00 1,994  - - 1,994  1,994  1,994  - - - - 

 
Receivables (i)  8,669  - - 8,669  8,669  8,669  - - - - 

 
Amounts receivable for services  15,623  - - 15,623  15,623  - - - - 15,623  

   
31,823  - - 31,823  31,823  16,200  - - - 15,623  

       
  

     
 

Financial Liabilities    
     

  
     

 
Payables 

 
1,925 - - 1,925 1,925 1,925 - - - - 

   
1,925 - - 1,925 1,925 1,925 - - - - 

              
 
(i) The amount of payables excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable). 

 
The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities. 
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36 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
 
The Department is not exposed to interest rate fluctuations. 
 
 
Fair values 
 
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, 
whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that 
represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the 
applicable notes. 
 
 

37 Remuneration of senior officers 
 

The number of senior officers, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary 
benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are: 

 
  $  $ 2015  2014 
        

    
<50,000 5 

 
3 

  
50,001 - 60,000 1 

 
- 

  
60,001 - 70,000 2 

 
- 

  
70,001 - 80,000 - 

 
1 

  
130,001 - 140,000 - 

 
1 

  
190,001 - 200,000 1 

 
2 

  
210,001 - 220,000 1 

 
2 

  
250,001 - 260,000 1 

 
- 

  
300,001 - 310,000 - 

 
1 

  
380,001 - 390,000 1 

 
- 

 
 

     
2015 

 
2014 

     
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

        
 

Base remuneration and superannuation 
  

1,208 
 

1,313 

 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 

 
110 

 
19 

 
Other benefits 

  
33 

 
42 

 
Total remuneration of senior officers 

  
1,351 

 
1,374 

         
 
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the 
Department in respect of senior officers. 
 
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme. 
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
38 Remuneration of auditor 

 
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for 
the current financial year is as follows: 
 

 Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance    
 indicators 123  117 

     
 

39 Special purpose accounts  
 

Perry Lakes Account 
 

 
Opening balance 2,622  

 
2,405  

     
 

Receipts: 
   

 
Land sales 2,195  

 
36,359  

 
Interest income 218  

 
234  

 
Other receipts 245  

 
1,417  

  
2,658  

 
38,010  

     
 

Payments: 
   

 
Repayment of Treasurer's advance (2,500) 

 
(31,000) 

 
Other payments (1,685) 

 
(6,793) 

  
(4,185) 

 
(37,793) 

     
 

Closing balance 1,095  
 

2,622  

      
This Account holds funds received pursuant to section 43 of the Perry Lakes 
Redevelopment Act 2005 for application in accordance with section 43(1) of 
that Act. 
 
  

Department of Planning
Development Assesment Panels



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
 
 

52 

  
2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
40 Supplementary financial information 
 
(a) Write-offs 
 

During the financial year 1 debt valued at $680 (nil in 2013-14) was written 
off under the authority of: 
 
 

 The Accountable Authority 1  - 

     
 
(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes 
  

The Department suffered no losses of public money or other property 
through theft, defaults or other causes during the current financial period. 
 

 
 

41 Indian Ocean Territories Service Level Agreement 
  

The provision of services to the Indian Ocean territories 
is recouped from the Commonwealth government. 
 

 Opening balance -  - 
     

 Receipts 94   91  

 Payments (94)  (91) 
     

 Closing balance -  - 
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42 Disclosure of administered income and expenses by service 
 

 

 Integrated land and 
transport policy 

development  

 Integrated 
land and 

transport policy 
development  

 Land 
accessibility 

planning 
tenure and 

policy 
development  

 Land 
accessibility 

planning 
tenure and 

policy 
development   Total   Total  

 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

 
 $ 000   $ 000  $ 000 $ 000  $ 000   $ 000  

       COST OF SERVICES 
      Expenses under the Perry Lakes 

Redevelopment Act 2005 
      Borrowings costs - - 1,169  1,905  1,169  1,905  

Loss on the disposal of land - - 689  22,960  689  22,960  
Other expenses - - 432  156  432  156  
Total administered expenses - - 2,290  25,021  2,290  25,021  

       Income 
       Revenues under the Perry Lakes 

Redevelopment Act 2005  
      Other revenues - - 119  1,707  119  1,707  

Total administered revenues - - 119  1,707  119  1,707  
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43 Explanatory Statement for Administered Items 
 

 
Note 

Original 
Budget Actual Actual 

Variance 
between 
estimate 

and 
actual 

Variance 
between 

actual 
results 

from 
2015 

and 
2014 

  
2015 2015 2014 

  
  

$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 
Administered expenses and income 

      
       Expenses 

      Borrowing costs 1 A 1,874  1,169  1,905  (705) (736) 
Loss on the disposal of land 2 B - 689  22,960  689  (22,271) 
Other Perry Lakes Redevelopment Act 2005 expenses 3 C 199  432  156  233  276  
 Total administered expenses  

 
2,073  2,290  25,021  217  (22,731) 

       
       Income 

      
       Other Revenues under the Perry Lakes Redevelopment 
Act 2005 4 D 160  119  1,707  (41) (1,588) 
Total administered income 

 
160  119  1,707  (41) (1,588) 

 
 
 
Major Estimate and Actual (2015) Variance Narratives for Administered Items 
 
1) Borrowing costs on Perry Lakes underspent by $0.7m (38%) due to lower interest expenses resulting from lower 

interest rates than estimated. 
 
2) Whilst losses on the disposal of land was not included in estimates there was a $0.7m loss made on sale of lands due 

to less favourable economic conditions than anticipated. 
 

3) Other expenses overspent by $0.2m (117%) due to requirements for valuation services from the Valuer General’s 
Office for the remaining land in preparation for transferring to the Town of Cambridge. 

 
4) Other Revenue lower than estimates by $0.1m (26%) due to less than expected interest revenue received from lower 

interest rates. 
 
 
Major Actual (2015) and Comparative (2014) Variance Narratives for Administered Items 
 
A) Borrowing costs decreased by $0.7m (39%) due to reducing interest rates resulting in lower interest expenses. 
 
B) Loss on the disposal of land decreased by $22.3m (97%) as only two lots of land were sold in 2014-15 compared with 

43 lots of land sold in 2013-14. Land sold value decreased due to softening economic conditions and resulted in the 
loss on disposal of land.    

 
C) Other expenses increased by $0.3m (176%) as the Perry Lakes land remaining was required to be valued by Landgate 

in preparation for transferring to the Town of Cambridge in 2015-16. Other project management costs incurred by 
Landcorp that were previously capitalised as construction in progress were expensed in 2014-15 in preparation for the 
completion of the project. 

 
D) Other Revenue decreased by $1.6m (93%) due to a one off settlement claim for remediation work on the Perry Lakes 

Stadium of $1.4m in 2013-14 and lower interest revenue due to reducing interest rates. 
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2015 

 
2014 

  
$ 000 

 
$ 000 

      
44 Administered assets and liabilities 
 

 
Current assets 

   
 

Cash 1,095  
 

2,622  

 
Accounts receivable  22  

 
143  

 
Total administered current assets 1,117  

 
2,765  

     
     
 

Non-current assets 
   

 
Land, at  fair value 28,273  

 
33,340  

 
Construction in progress (i) 5,949  

 
6,913  

 
Total administered non-current assets 34,222  

 
40,253  

     
 

Total administered assets 35,339  
 

43,018  

     
     
 

Current liabilities 
   

 
Accounts payable 25  

 
1,056  

 
Borrowings - 

 
5,000  

 
Total administered current liabilities 25  

 
6,056  

     
     
 

Non-current liabilities 
   

 
Interest payable 23,113  

 
21,944  

 
Borrowings 42,017  

 
39,517  

 
Total administered non-current liabilities 65,130  

 
61,461  

     
 

Total administered liabilities 65,155  
 

67,517  

      
(i) Represents the value of land development under construction costs. 
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CERTIFICATION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015 
 
 
I hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, 
are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Department of 
Planning's performance, and fairly represent the performance of the 
Department of Planning for the financial year ended 30 June 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  
John Deery 
Chief Finance Officer 
Department of Planning 
 
21 September 2015 
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Department	  of	  Planning	  Level	  Government	  Desired	  Outcomes	  	  
and	  Key	  Performance	  Indicators	  

	  
The	  breadth	  and	  diversity	  of	  the	  Department	  of	  Planning’s	  (the	  Department)	  functions	  and	  services	  means	  that	  
the	  Department	  contributes	   to	  many	  of	   the	  Government’s	   strategic	  goals.	   	  The	  Department’s	  most	   significant	  
contributions	  to	  the	  Government's	  goals	  are	  outlined	  in	  the	  tabled	  below.	  
	  

Government	  Goal	   Department	  Desired	  Outcomes	   Department	  Services	  

Outcomes	  Based	  Service	  
Delivery	  	  
Greater	  focus	  on	  achieving	  
results	  in	  key	  service	  delivery	  
areas	  for	  the	  benefit	  of	  all	  
Western	  Australians.	  

Integration	  of	  land	  systems	  that	  
facilitate	  economic	  
development.	  	  	  

Integrated	  Land	  and	  	  
Infrastructure	  Policy	  Development	  	  

Accessibility	  to	  serviced	  land	  and	  
infrastructure	  

Land	  Accessibility	  Planning	  and	  Policy	  
Development	  

	  
The	  Department	  of	  Treasury	  approved	  abolition	  of	  the	  following	  performance	  measures	  from	  the	  Department’s	  
Outcome	  Structure	  in	  April	  2014:	  

• People	  in	  the	  metropolitan	  region	  that	  live	  within	  ten	  minutes	  of	  a	  major	  public	  transport	  route	  	  
Within	  a	  10	  minute	  walk	  to	  a	  bus	  stop,	  Within	  a	  10	  minute	  ride	  to	  a	  railway	  station,	  Within	  10	  minute	  
car	  travel	  to	  a	  railway	  station);	  and	  

• Avoided	  land	  consumption	  costs.	  
	  
For	  comparisons	  purposes	  with	  previous	  years,	  the	  2014-‐15	  actuals	  for	  the	  above	  performance	  measures	  have	  
been	  reported	  on	  pages	  35	  and	  36.	  	  
	  
DoP Level Government Desired Outcome: 
Integration of land systems that facilitate economic development 
	  
Effectiveness	  Indicator:	   Proportion	  of	  zoned	  land	  in	  the	  metropolitan	  area	  that	  is	  400	  metres/1	  kilometre	  

from	  major	  transport	  systems.	  
	  
The	   Department,	   through	   its	   land-‐planning	   role,	   determines	   the	   location	   of	   major	   transport	   routes,	   their	  
suitability	   for	   a	   range	   of	   transport	   services	   and	   their	   proximity	   to	   urban	   areas.	   	   The	   term	   “major	   transport	  
routes”	  includes	  all	  major	  roads	  and	  railway	  lines	  which	  buses	  and	  trains	  use	  as	  the	  main	  connecting	  corridors,	  
but	  excludes	  minor	  suburban	  roads.	  	  	  
	  
Convenient	  access	  to	  major	  transport	  systems	  pays	  significant	  economic	  dividends	  through:	  	  

• facilitating	  commuting	  to	  industrial	  centres;	  	  
• linking	  consumers	  to	  products	  and	  services;	  	  
• enabling	  the	  efficient	  transport	  of	  freight;	  and	  
• reducing	  private	  usage	  road	  infrastructure	  costs.	  
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Enabling	  ease	  of	  access	  to	  major	  public	  transport	  systems	  also	  allows	  development	  to	  occur	  sustainably	  through	  
reduced	  greenhouse	  gases	  and	  greater	  reliance	  on	  environmentally	  friendly	  transport	  options.	   	   In	  this	  context,	  
major	  transport	  systems	  are	  primary	  regional	  roads,	  other	  regional	  roads	  and	  railway	  stations	  as	  defined	  in	  the	  
Regional	  Scheme.	  	  
	  
Where	   the	   proportion	   of	   zoned	   land	   that	   meets	   the	   international	   benchmark	   of	   400	   metres	   from	   major	  
transport	  systems	  is	  trending	  upwards	  or	  remains	  constant,	  the	  Department	  demonstrates	  achievement	  of	  land	  
and	  transport	  integration.	  	  
	  
This	   indicator	   is	  calculated	   from	  the	  Local/Town	  Planning	  Scheme	   Information	  extracted	  using	  the	  Geographic	  
Information	  System	  (GIS).	   	  This	  GIS	  is	  a	  spatial	  database	  consisting	  of	  mapping	  characteristics	  and	  coordinates.	  	  
The	  data	  extracted	  represents	  percentages	  of	  land	  for	  selected	  residential	  density	  codes	  (R-‐Codes)	  proximity	  to	  
major	  transport	  routes.	  	  The	  data	  is	  for	  the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  area	  only.	  
	  

	   2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Proportion	  of	  zoned	  land	  in	  the	  
metropolitan	  area	  that	  is	  400	  
metres	  /1	  kilometre	  from	  
major	  transport	  systems.	  

	   	   	   	   	  

	  -‐	  Less	  than	  R20	  :	  400m	   40.5%	   40.2% 40.1%	   40.3%	   40.8%	  

	  -‐	  Less	  than	  R20	  :	  1	  km	   78.7%	   78.2% 78.2%	   78.3%	   79.0%	  

	  -‐	  R20	  :	  400m	   59.9%	   60.0% 59.1%	   60.0%	   59.9%	  

	  -‐	  R20	  :	  1	  km	   95.2%	   95.1% 95.0%	   95.2%	   95.1%	  

	  -‐	  Greater	  than	  R20	  :	  400m	   60.9%	   60.6% 60.6%	   60.7%	   60.7%	  

	  -‐	  Greater	  than	  R20	  :	  1km	   96.1%	   95.9% 95.9%	   95.9%	   95.9%	  
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Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	  Area	  of	  commercial	  and	  industrial	  land	  per	  capita	  per	  corridor	  
	  
One	   of	   the	   objectives	   sought	   from	   the	   integration	   of	   land	   and	   transport	   is	   economic	   development	   through	  
enhanced	  employment	  self-‐sufficiency	   in	  metropolitan	  planning	  sectors.	   	   In	  other	  words,	  people	   that	   live	   in	  a	  
suburb	  are	  able	  to	  find	  work	  in	  that	  suburb.	  	  Employment	  self-‐sufficiency	  yields	  several	  benefits	  including:	  	  

• minimising	   environmental	   impacts	   through	   reducing	   the	   need	   for	   long	   car	   journeys	   to	   places	   of	  
employment;	  	  

• revitalising	  suburbs	  through	  increased	  local	  employment;	  	  
• maximising	  utilisation	  of	  infrastructure	  and	  services	  through	  greater	  density	  in	  prescribed	  areas;	  and	  	  
• social	   benefits	   including	   improved	   work/life	   balance	   through	   reduced	   commuting	   times	   and	   an	  

enhanced	  sense	  of	  community.	  	  
	  
The	  Department	  can	  directly	  influence	  the	  creation	  of	  jobs	  in	  specific	  geographical	  areas,	  through	  ensuring	  that	  
land	  is	  available	  for	  commercial	  and	  industrial	  purposes.	  	  Western	  Australia	  has	  many	  opportunities	  to	  promote	  
and	  foster	  continued	  strong	  and	  sustainable	  economic	  growth	  in	  commerce,	  industry	  and	  trade.	  	  These	  have	  and	  
will	   continue	   to	   provide	   an	   expanded	   financial	   base	   to	   Government	   for	   meeting	   growing	   community	   lifestyle	  
expectations.	  	  Responding	  to	  the	  needs	  of	  this	  growth	  potential,	  along	  with	  responding	  to	  the	  general	  needs	  of	  
population	  growth,	  has	  and	  will	  continue	  to	  require	  careful	  planning	  and	  management	  of	   the	  State's	   land	  use	  
and	   infrastructure	   requirements.	   	   As	   the	   Department	   has	   significant	   involvement	   in	   this	   role	   through	   the	  
provision	  of	  effective	  and	  timely	  advice,	  the	  Department	  can	  therefore	  make	  a	  substantial	  contribution	  to	  the	  
State's	  economic	  and	  social	  development	  goals.	  	  
	  
Where	   the	   percentage	   of	   commercial	   and	   industrial	   land,	   per	   capita	   per	   planning	   sector	   increases,	   the	  
Department	  demonstrates	  its	  contribution	  to	  fostering	  economic	  development.	  
	  
To	  calculate	  this	  indicator,	  industrial	  and	  commercial	  zoned	  land	  in	  Local	  Authority	  Town	  Planning	  Schemes	  and	  
the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  Region	  Schemes	  are	  combined	  with	  planning	  sector	  boundaries	  and	  the	  resulting	   land	  
area	   summed	   by	   planning	   sector.	   	   Land	   areas	   per	   capita	   are	   determined	   by	   dividing	   these	   areas	   by	   the	  
population1	  in	  each	  planning	  sector.	  	  
	  
A	  significant	   improvement	  was	  made	  during	  2014-‐15	   in	   relation	   to	   the	  classification	  of	  Local	  Planning	  Scheme	  
zone	  categories	  and	  the	  calculation	  of	  associated	  land	  with	  commercial	  and	  industrial	  activities.	   It	  has	   led	  to	  a	  
more	  precise	  apportionment	  of	  land	  area	  in	  each	  of	  the	  subregions	  and	  significant	  movement	  in	  some	  reported	  
indicators.	  
	  
	   2011-‐12	  

Actual	  
2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Area	  of	  commercial	  
and	  industrial	  land	  
per	  capita	  per	  
corridor:	  

	   	   	   	   	   	  

	  -‐	  Eastern	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

9.1m2	   9.0m2 9.6m2 9.0m2	   13.1m2 Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  85Ha	  of	  commercial	  
land	  being	  added	  to	  Eastern	  
Sector.	  	  

	  -‐	  Eastern	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	  

78.2m2	   96.7m2 93.3m2 97m2	   167.2m2 	  
Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  1766Ha	  of	  
Industrial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
Eastern	  Sector.	  

                                                
 
1 The	  population	  data	  is	  based	  on	  the	  Population	  Estimates	  by	  Local	  Government	  Area	  (ASGS	  2004-‐2014)	  released	  by	  Australian	  Bureau	  of	  Statistics,	  
Catalogue	  No.	  3218.0,	  on	  31th	  March	  2015.	  	  	   
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	   2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

	  -‐	  Inner	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

31.1m2	   30.4m2 29.6m2	   30.5m2	   25.1m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  116	  Ha	  of	  Industrial	  
land	  being	  removed	  from	  the	  
Inner	  Sector.	  

	  -‐	  Inner	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	  

12.2m2	   11.8m2	   11.4m2	   12m2	   11.2m2	  
	  

	  -‐	  Middle	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

21.4m2	   20.6m2	   20.8m2	   20.6m2	   30.3m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  553	  Ha	  of	  
commercial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
Middle	  Sector.	  
	  

	  -‐	  Middle	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	  

62.2m2	   59.8m2	   58.7m2	   60.5m2	   50.2m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  422	  Ha	  of	  Industrial	  
land	  being	  removed	  from	  Middle	  
Sector.	  

	  -‐	  North	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

34.4m2	   33.4m2	   39.5m2	   33.5m2	   42.3m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  135	  Ha	  of	  industrial	  
land	  being	  added	  to	  North	  West	  
Sector.	  

	  -‐	  North	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	  

59.1m2	   57.3m2	   55.2m2	   57.3m2	   167.9m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  4,043	  Ha	  of	  
industrial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
North	  West	  Sector.	  

-‐	  South	  East	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

14.0m2	   13m2	   17.7m2	   13.3m2	   17.1m2	   Population	  changes	  resulted	  in	  an	  
increase	  of	  residents	  of	  8,138	  
which	  was	  below	  that	  utilised	  to	  
calculate	  the	  target.	  

-‐	  South	  East	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	  

53.2m2	   63.6m2	   60.4m2	   64m2	   76.9m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  418	  Ha	  of	  industrial	  
land	  being	  added	  to	  South	  East	  
Sector.	  

-‐	  South	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

21.5m2	   20.9m2	   27.3m2	   20.5m2	   46.9m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  553	  Ha	  of	  
commercial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
South	  West	  Sector.	  

-‐	  South	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	  

152.4m2	   139.9m2	   134.1m2	   140m2	   204.2m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  2,017	  Ha	  of	  
industrial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
South	  West	  Sector.	  

-‐	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  
Region	  –	  Commercial	  
per	  capita	  

23.0m2	   22.2m2	   24.8m2	   22.2m2	   30.5m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  1,210	  Ha	  of	  
commercial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
overall	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  Region.	  

-‐	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  
Region	  –	  Industrial	  
per	  capita	  

67.0m2	   67.9m2	   63.7m2	   67.4m2	   104.8m2	   Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  7,821	  Ha	  of	  
industrial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
overall	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  Region	  
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EFFICIENCY	  KEY	  PERFORMANCE	  INDICATORS	  
	  
Service	  1:	  Integrated	  Land	  and	  Infrastructure	  Policy	  Development	  
	  
By	  shaping	  the	  pattern	  of	  development	  and	  influencing	  the	  location,	  scale,	  density,	  design	  and	  mix	  of	  land	  uses	  
it	  contributes	  to	  the	  Government’s	  goal,	  Outcomes	  Based	  Service	  Delivery	  by:	  
• ensuring	  flexibility	  to	  meet	  the	  demands	  of	  a	  changing	  economy	  and	  market	  environments;	  and	  
• maximising	  the	  use	  of	  existing	  infrastructure	  rather	  than	  incurring	  the	  costs	  of	  green	  fields	  infrastructure	  

with	  its	  resulting	  impact	  on	  home	  affordability.	  
	  
	  

Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Average	  cost	  per	  policy	  
hour	  for	  integrated	  land	  
policy	  development	  

$119.19	   $113.25	   $131.08	   $132.52	   $127.63	  
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DoP Level Government Desired Outcome: 
Accessibility to serviced land and infrastructure 
	  
	  
Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	   Number	  of	  lots	  given	  preliminary	  and	  final	  approval	  	  
	  
The	  Department	  seeks	  to	  provide	  sufficient	  land	  for	  housing	  to	  accommodate	  the	  anticipated	  future	  population	  
growth	  of	   the	  State.	   	  To	   this	  end,	   the	  Department	  plays	  an	   important	   role	  by	  ensuring	  sufficient	  zoned	  urban	  
land	   and	   facilitating	   orderly	   land	   release	   through	   structure	   planning	   and	   issuing	   subdivision	   approvals	  
throughout	  the	  State.	  	  The	  Department	  is	  partnered	  with	  the	  Western	  Australian	  Planning	  Commission	  (WAPC)	  
in	  this	  process.	  	  
	  
The	  Department	   issued	   final	  approvals	   for	  19,140	  new	  residential	   lots	  during	  2014-‐15	   (Perth	  and	  Peel)	   to	   the	  
land	  development	  industry.	  	  The	  corresponding	  total	  Statewide	  figure	  for	  final	  approvals	  for	  residential	  lots	  was	  
21,256.	  
	  
The	  Department	  is	  not	  the	  sole	  determinant	  of	  land	  availability,	  as	  for	  a	  number	  of	  reasons,	  not	  all	  preliminary	  
approvals	   (which	   reflect	  a	  bank	  of	  developable	   land	   from	  which	  developers	  can	  draw)	  go	   through	  to	   the	   final	  
approval	   stage.	   	   These	   include	   external	   factors	   such	   as	   availability	   of	   raw	   materials,	   interest	   rates,	   developer	  
capacity	   and	   market	   conditions.	   	   Therefore,	   the	   Department	   (via	   the	   WAPC)	   is	   only	   able	   to	   respond	   to	  
applications	  lodged	  for	  preliminary	  and	  final	  approval.	  
	  
These	  measures	  are	  extracted	  from	  the	  Department's	  electronic	  administrative	  subdivision	  tracking	  system	  and	  
are	  published	   in	  the	  quarterly	  bulletin	  entitled	  State	  Lot	  Activity.	   	  Analysis	  of	  trends	  relating	  to	  the	  number	  of	  
lots	   given	   preliminary	   or	   final	   approval	   in	   statewide	   should	   be	   undertaken	   separately	   as	   each	   indicator	   can	  
respond	  differently	  to	  the	  prevailing	  market	  conditions.	  
	  
	   2011-‐12	  

Actual	  
2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Number	  of	  lots	  given	  
preliminary	  and	  final	  
approval	  

	   	   	   	   	  

	  -‐	  Residential	   36,133	   41,027	   51,812	   53,000	   55,187	  
	  -‐	  Non-‐Residential	   6,364	   5,095	   5,283	   5,800	   5,286	  

	   	  



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Department of Planning
Development Assesment Panels

7

Effectiveness	  Indicator:	   Median	  land	  price	  as	  a	  percentage	  of	  median	  residential	  property	  sales	  price	  

This	   indicator	   details	   land	   costs	   compared	   to	   median	   house	   sale	   prices.	   	   The	   Department	   has	   some	   effect	   on	  
median	   land	   prices	   by	   ensuring	   that	   there	   is	   sufficient	   stock	   of	   approved	   land	   suitable	   for	   development	   or	  
redevelopment,	  although	  the	  principal	  price	  determinants	  are	  supply	  and	  demand	  in	  the	  market	  itself.	  	  

This	  indicator	  is	  useful	  because	  it	  disaggregates	  the	  price	  of	  residential	  land	  from	  the	  price	  of	  houses.	  	  The	  actual	  
for	  2014-‐15	  for	  the	  whole	  of	  Western	  Australia	  is	  49%	  while	  the	  actual	  for	  Perth	  is	  51%.	  

Median	  sales	  prices	  (derived	  from	  sales	  information	  obtained	  from	  Landgate)	  are	  quoted	  for	  houses	  and	  vacant	  
land	  in	  the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  areas	  and	  for	  the	  whole	  of	  the	  State	  in	  the	  quarterly	  REIWA	  Market	  Update.	  	  This	  
indicator	  is	  calculated	  by	  expressing	  the	  average	  median	  land	  price	  for	  the	  year	  as	  a	  percentage	  of	  the	  average	  
median	  established	  house	  price	  for	  the	  year	  for	  the	  Perth	  metropolitan	  area.	  	  	  	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Median	  land	  price	  as	  a	  percentage	  
of	  median	  residential	  property	  
sales	  price	  

57%	   54%	   57%	   55%	   51%	  

Effectiveness	  Indicator:	   Relative	  Affordability	  of	  property	  and	  land	  prices	  

This	   indicator	   compares	   the	   cost	   of	   existing	   property	   and	   land	   prices	   with	   that	   of	   other	   mainland	   and	   non-‐
territory	   capital	   cities.	   	   Given	   that	   housing	   and	   land	   costs	   are	   a	   function	   of	   land	   supply,	   it	   is	   reasonable	   to	  
assume	  that	  relative	  affordability	  of	  housing	  and	  land	  indicate	  effective	  management	  of	  land	  supply	  in	  support	  
of	  economic	  outcomes.	  	  

This	   indicator	  measures	  the	  comparative	  number	  of	  weeks	  that	  a	  home	  purchaser	  requires	  to	  pay	  off	  a	  house	  
purchase	  in	  the	  major	  capital	  cities.	  	  It	  is	  a	  function	  of	  the	  median	  house	  prices	  of	  each	  of	  those	  cities	  over	  the	  
average	  weekly	  earnings.	  	  

Data	   for	   this	   indicator	   is	   sourced	   from	  the	  REIA	  publication	  Market	  Facts2	  and	   the	  Average	  Weekly	  Earnings3,	  
published	  by	  the	  Australian	  Bureau	  of	  Statistics.	  	  	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Relative	  affordability	  of	  property	  
and	  land	  prices	  

Lowest	  
quintile	  

Lowest	  
quintile	  

Second	  
quintile	  

Lowest	  
quintile	  

Second	  
quintile	  

2 March	  Quarter	  2015 (Cat	  no.	  6302)
3 November	  2014 
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Effectiveness	  Indicator:	   Average	  lot	  size	  in	  the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  Region	  

A	  consolidated	  urban	  form	  enables	  efficient	  use	  of	  urban	  land	  and	  infrastructure	  with	  improved	  access	  to	  public	  
transport,	  recreation,	  community	  and	  commercial	  facilities	  while	  avoiding	  impacting	  upon	  significant	  
environmental	  attributes.	  	  

The	  Department	  plays	  an	  important	  role	  in	  delivering	  a	  compact	  urban	  form	  through	  the	  approval	  of	  
appropriately	  sized	  residential	  lots	  across	  the	  Perth	  metropolitan	  area	  which	  provides	  for	  a	  greater	  diversity	  of	  
housing	  choice	  and	  encourages	  housing	  affordability.	  

The	   data	   for	   this	   measure	   refers	   to	   new	   lots	   and	   are	   obtained	   from	   the	   WAPC	   publication	   State	   Lot	   Activity	  
Report	  (June	  2015).	  	  	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Average	  lot	  size	  in	  the	  Perth	  
Metropolitan	  Region	   413m2 420m2	   410m2	   425m2	   396m2	  
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Effectiveness	  Indicator:	   Determination	  appeals	  that	  are	  unsuccessful	  

The	  percentage	  of	  determinations	  made	  without	  successful	  applications	  for	  review	  provides	  an	  indicator	  of	  the	  
Department's	  effectiveness	  in	  the	  application	  of	  the	  WAPC's	  State	  Planning	  Framework.	  	  	  

Effective	   application	   of	   this	   framework	   delivers	   efficient	   decisions	   and	   ensures	   that	   new	   land	   is	   adequately	  
serviced.	   	   Where	   a	   determination	   is	   successfully	   challenged	   by	   demonstrating	   flaws	   in	   the	   Department's	  
application	   of	   policy,	   additional	   costs	   may	   be	   incurred	   both	   by	   the	   developer	   and	   subsequently	   by	   land	  
purchasers.	  	  

The	  indicator	  is	  the	  number	  of	  all	  subdivision,	  strata	  and	  development	  application	  determinations	  made	  that	  are	  
not	   successfully	   "reviewed',	   (i.e.	   upheld)	   before	   the	   State	   Administrative	   Tribunal	   (SAT),	   expressed	   as	   a	  
percentage	  of	  the	  total	  number	  of	  applications	  determined	  within	  the	  reporting	  period.	  	  	  

The	   data	   shows	   that	   one	   application	   for	   review	   before	   the	   SAT	   was	   upheld	   in	   2014-‐15,	   and	   that	   3,899	  
subdivisions,	  strata	  and	  development	  applications	  were	  determined.	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Determination	  appeals	  that	  are	  
unsuccessful	   99.8%	   99.9%	   99.9%	   99.9%	   99.9%	  
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EFFICIENCY	  KEY	  PERFORMANCE	  INDICATORS	  
	  

Service	  2:	  Land	  Accessibility	  Planning	  and	  Policy	  Development	  
	  
This	   service	  contributes	   to	   the	  achievement	  of	   the	  outcome	  "accessibility	   to	   serviced	   land	  and	   infrastructure"	  
through:	  

• ensuring	  that	  sufficient	  land	  is	  available	  for	  purchase	  for	  both	  residential	  and	  commercial	  purposes;	  

• controlling	  lot	  sizes	  and	  therefore	  the	  costs	  of	  infrastructure	  required	  to	  service	  each	  lot;	  	  

• minimising	   delays	   and	   their	   attendant	   costs	   by	   making	   accurate,	   timely	   decisions	   on	   redevelopment	   and	  
subdivision	  proposals;	  and	  

• providing	  resources	  to	  the	  WAPC	  to	  enable:	  	  

! the	  acquisition	  and	  management	  of	  properties	  reserved	  under	  Perth's	  Metropolitan	  Region	  Scheme	  for	  
important	  urban	  roads,	  controlled	  access	  highways,	  parks	  and	  recreational	  reserves,	  special	  uses	  and	  
major	  land	  redevelopment	  projects;	  	  

! the	  disposal	  of	  surplus	  properties;	  	  

! the	  management	  of	  rental	  properties;	  and	  

! other	  special	  planning	  projects	  undertaken	  within	  the	  Perth	  metropolitan	  area.	  	  
	  

	  
Key	  Efficiency	  

Indicator	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  Significant	  
Variance	  

Cost	  per	  subdivision	  
and	  development	  
application	  
processed	  

$7,645	   $6,998	   $5,819	   $6,019	   $7,176	  

Increases	  in	  the	  Cost	  per	  
Subdivision	  and	  Development	  
Application	  Processed	  has	  
resulted	  from	  a	  decline	  in	  the	  
property	  market	  including	  a	  
relative	  decline	  in	  the	  number	  
of	  subdivision	  and	  
development	  applications	  
received	  for	  processing.	  

	  

	  
	  
	   	  

0	  
1,000	  
2,000	  
3,000	  
4,000	  
5,000	  
6,000	  
7,000	  
8,000	  
9,000	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Co
st

	  $
	  

Financial	  Year	  

Cost	  per	  subdivision	  and	  	  
development	  applicaWon	  processed	  
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Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Statutory	  planning	  applications	  
processed	  within	  statutory	  
timeframes	  

76%	   84%	   79%	   80%	   85%	  
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Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

%	  

Financial	  Year	  

Statutory	  planning	  applicaWons	  processed	  
within	  statutory	  Wmeframes	  
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Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Average	  cost	  per	  policy	  and	  
planning	  hour	   $118.39	   $112.03	   $125.67	   $166.56	   $161.10	  
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Actual	  
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Actual	  
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Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Co
st

	  $
	  

Financial	  Year	  

Average	  cost	  per	  policy	  	  
and	  planning	  hour	  



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Department of Planning
Development Assesment Panels

 	  

13	  

Key	  Efficiency	  
Indicator	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  Significant	  
Variance	  

Town	  Planning	  Scheme	  
amendments	  (for	  final	  
approval)	  processed	  
within	  non-‐statutory	  
timeframes	  

44%	   49%	   28%	   60%	   32%	  

The	  target	  was	  not	  met	  
due	  to	  a	  continuation	  of	  
high	  numbers	  of	  
complex	  LPS	  
amendments	  being	  
received	  during	  the	  year	  
resulting	  in	  longer	  
timeframes.	  
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Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

2014-‐15	  
Target	  

2014-‐15	  
Actual	  

Deposited	  and	  Strata	  Plans	  
endorsed	  within	  non-‐statutory	  
timeframes	  

99%	   99%	   99%	   100%	   99%	  
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